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Chairman’s Statement

FRE

Dear Shareholders,

I present to the Shareholders the annual results of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY2013”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s operating hotel located in Xiangfan,
Hubei province contributed hotel rental income and food & beverage
(“F&B”) revenue of HK$2.7 million and HK$0.4 million, respectively
compared with the last financial year (“FY 2012”) of HK$3.5 million of

hotel rental income, and HK$0.4 million of F&B revenue.

The Group’s office building located in Yingkou, Liaoning province
contributed office rental income of HK$2.3 million, while its property
located in Wuhan, Hubei province commenced its leasing operations in

October 2012, and contributed rental income of HK$1.2 million.

During the year, the Group has signed two equity transfer agreements for
disposing two companies in Wafangdian and Tulufan. The gains on these
disposals have not been included as the equity transfers have not yet been

completed.

With continuous cost control measure implementation, staff costs have
decreased from HK$13.5 million in FY2012 to HK$11.9 million in
FY2013. Other operating expenses also decreased from HK$28.3 million
last year to HK$18.2 million in FY2013; and coupled with a write-back of a
provision for bad debt of HK$4.1 million, the Group recorded net operating
costs of HK$14.1 million.

For FY2013, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$70.8 million (FY2012: HK$52.4 million). Total
comprehensive loss attributed to equity holders of the Company was
HK$63.2 million due to the gain on property revaluation reserve (FY2012:
HK$26.5 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

financial year ended 31 March 2013.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group maintains its strategies of developing its properties into budget
hotels or commercial offices for leasing or sales, or, when appropriate,
outright sale. The Group will continue its efforts to add value to its assets
by seeking appropriate joint ventures or partnership with companies in the
hospitality, tourism and property industries or companies with investment

interests in these industries.

Yingkou office building

The Yingkou building was revalued as at 31 March 2013 from HK$93.7
million to HK$96.6 million resulted in a revaluation surplus of HK$2.9
million. The net revaluation surplus of HK$2.5 million was included in
“Other gain” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and

HK$0.4 million was included in “Exchange reserve”.

Wuhan hotel

The Group has leased the whole Wuhan hotel in October 2012 for an
annual rental income of approximately HK$2.5 million. The Wuhan hotel
was revalued as at 31 March 2013 from HK$17.0 million to HK$30.5
resulted in a revaluation surplus of HK$13.5 million. The net revaluation
surplus of HK$1.6 million was included in “Other gain” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and HK$11.9 was included in

% . .
Revaluation reserve”.

PROSPECTS

China’s real estate market is expected a modest recovery in 2013. The
Chinese government seeks to increase domestic demand, promoting
consumption growth and continue to support the development of tourism.
We expect that a good development trend of China’s economy and
constantly improvement in the investment environment are conducive to the
Group for maintaining its strategies. At the same time, we will continue to
focus on China’s tourism and real estate market conditions in order to seek

better investment returns.
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our valued clients, shareholders and business associates for their continued
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Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong: 6 June 2013
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover for the year in the amount of HK$6.6
million (FY 2012: HK$6.4 million). Current year turnover comprised
rental income, hotel rental income and F&B revenue of HK$3.5 million,
HK$2.7 million and HK$0.4 million respectively. For the last financial year,
rental income, hotel rental income and F&B revenue were HK$2.5 million,

HK$3.5 million and HK$0.4 million, respectively.

Staff costs

Staff costs have decreased from HK$13.5 million to HK$11.9 million
during the period due to cost control measures undertaken by the
management coupled with a decrease in operating activities in line with the
Group’s re-positioning of its strategies. For the last financial year, staff costs

included a write back of a provision for bonus of HK$5.5 million.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which are of recurring nature comprise mainly
office rentals, and other corporate expenses related to on-going corporate
activities. Other operating expenses have decreased significantly from
HK$28.3 million last year to HK$14.1 million this year mainly due to
reduction in recurring cost and a reversal of a provision for bad debt of

HK$4.1 million.

Finance costs

The Group has fully repaid a loan in February 2013 which resulted in a
decrease in finance costs from HK$48.0 million to HK$46.6 million in

current year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained total bank and cash balances of HK$90.8 million
as of 31 March 2013. Cash deposits have been placed with major banks in
Hong Kong and the PRC in the form of United States dollar, Hong Kong

dollar and Renminbi deposits.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)
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BUSINESS MODEL AND CORPORATE
STRATEGY

The Group is engaged in hotel and property investment in PRC. Our
strategies are to develop its properties into budget hotels or commercial
offices for leasing or sales, or, when appropriate, outright sales. The Group
will continue its efforts to add value to its assets by seeking appropriate
joint ventures or partnership with companies in the hospitality, tourism
and property industries or companies with investment interests in these

industries.

As of 31 March 2013, the Group had an amount due to ultimate holding
company totaling HK$448.4 million due within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts net of cash reserves over the total equity (including
non-controlling interest). As of 31 March 2013, the gearing ratio was
6,952.7% (FY2012: 453.0%). The increase in the gearing ratio over the two
financial years was mainly due to a smaller total equity base. Subsequent
to the year end, the management has obtained agreements by the ultimate
holding company to extend the repayment of certain short-term borrowings
totaling HK$448.4 million in May 2013. During the year, the Group totally
received HK$67.8 million from its disposal of certain subsidiaries and debts

collection.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group also entered into two Equity Transfer
Agreements to sell 100% equity interest of 2 subsidiaries in May 2013 for a
total consideration of HK$43.1 million

Together with the continuous financial support from the principal
sharcholder, the management is confident that by executing its plans the

Group is able to meet its obligations.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had a total of 85 employees (FY2012:
92 employees) approximately, including Executive Directors. The Group’s
remuneration policy and packages for the Executive Directors and senior
management are reviewed and recommended by the RQN Committee and
approved by the Board on an annual basis while that for other employees’
are reviewed and approved by the Chief Executive Officer. The Group
remunerates its employees based on industry practice and the performance
of each individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical
insurance, and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share

option scheme for its employees and Executive Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Chairman, Member of the EC ¥ and Member of
the RQNC @

Aged 58. Datuk Lim was appointed as the Chairman and Executive Director
on 27 April 2004. He was the Group Chief Executive Officer, Group
President and the Chairman of EC " during the period from 1 August
2010 to 2 July 2012. Datuk Lim holds a Bachelor of Economics degree of
The London School of Economics, England. Datuk Lim has substantial
investment and management experience in a wide range of industries
including plantations, leisure and entertainment, construction, property
development and information technology. Prior to joining the Group,
Datuk Lim was the Deputy Managing Director of Genting Berhad and the
Joint Managing Director of Genting Plantations Berhad (formerly known
as “Asiatic Development Berhad”) during 1985 to 1990, and an Alternate
Non-executive Director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited during 1997
to 2002. Datuk Lim was appointed as Executive Director of Dataprep
Holdings Berhad on 5 March 2002, he has re-designated and continued
to serve that company as a Non-independent Non Executive Director
since November 2007. Genting Berhad, Genting Plantations Berhad and
Dataprep Holdings Berhad are all listed on Main Market of Bursa Malaysia,
and Asia Financial Holdings Limited on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Datuk Lim is a director and beneficial shareholder of VXL
Capital Partners Corporation Limited (“VXLCPL”) and is also an ultimate
beneficial owner of Huge More Limited (“Huge More”) from 7 May 2010,
both VXLCPL and Huge More are substantial shareholders of the Company
under the SFO.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Mzr. XTAO Huan Wei, Group President, Group Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the EC

Aged 55. Mr. Xiao is the President — China of the Group since July 2006
and was appointed as an Executive Director on 25 July 2008. He was
appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of U-Inn Group on 31
March 2010. He was also appointed as the Group President, Group Chief
Executive Officer and the Chairman of EC @ on 3 July 2012. Mr. Xiao has
over 26 years professional experience in business investment, operation and
management in the Mainland China. He was engaged in the establishment
and management of the first joint venture company affiliated to Shanghai
Post & Tele-communication Management Bureau from 1986 to 1991. In
1992, he participated in the formation of Ming Sheng Group and acted as
the General Manager of its Shanghai branch. He was the President of Ming
Sheng Group from 1994 to 2000 and was responsible for various functions
including investment, real estate development, import and export, logistics,
computer network and communications. Prior to joining the Group, he
found an educational and financial service company in Australia which was
in cooperation with the Bank of Communication in China and Australia

Westpac to provide overall financial solutions to students from China.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Chairman of the RQNC @Pand Member of
the AC @

Aged 69. Mr. Smith was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 April 2004. Mr. Smith holds an L.L.B. (Hons) degree of Bristol
University, England. He was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1967
and in Hong Kong in 1970. He was elected a council member of the Stock
Exchange on two occasions. He was a member of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government’s Economic Advisory Committee, and
was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform for ten years. Mr. Smith was the Vice Chairman,
Pacific Region of Credit Suisse First Boston, a leading global investment
bank from 1997 until his retirement in December 2001. He was also the
Chief Executive of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to 1994 and the
Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Smith
has over 27 years of investment banking experience in Asia. Mr. Smith is
an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of listed companies
including, Genting Hong Kong Limited (formerly known as “Star Cruises
Limited”), Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited and Wheelock and Company
Limited which are listed on the Stock Exchange; and Noble Group Limited

which is listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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During T years, Mr. Smith was an independent non-executive
director of Frasers Property (China) Limited which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, United International Securities Limited which is listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited; Castle Asia Alternative PCC
Limited (formerly known as “KGR Absolute Return PCC Limited”) which
was listed on The London Stock Exchange; and Global Investment House,
KSC which is listed on Kuwait Stock Exchange, Bahrain Stock Exchange and
The London Stock Exchange until he resigned from the office with effect
on January 2011, April 2011, April 2011 and September 2012, respectively.
Mr. Smith is also as a director of Asian Credit Hedge Fund which had been
listed on The Irish Stock Exchange but was voluntarily delisted in July 2012.

Mr. David YU Hon To, Chairman of the AC ? and member of the
RQNC @

Aged 65. Mr. Yu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 1 May 2007. Mr. Yu is the Vice Chairman of MCL Partners Limited,
a Hong Kong-based financial advisory and investment firm. Mr. Yu is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an international accounting
firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director of China Datang Corporation
Renewable Power Company Limited*, China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited, Great China Holdings
Limited, Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd., Keck Seng Investments (Hong
Kong) Limited, Media Chinese International Limited, One Media Group
Limited, Playmates Holdings Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited, Synergis
Holdings Limited and TeleEye Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Mt. SOO Ying Pooi, Members of the AC @ and the RQNC @ R MR e A 2 B B RRQNZ A G B

Aged 58. Mr. Soo was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director AN BB R TN
on 16 November 2012. Mr. Soo holds a Bachelor of Science degree in H O AT 2 B S R AT o o BROB A Fr A
Electrical Engineering from Imperial College of London University. Mr. Soo SOK B Ry I BT R e A B 2 TR AR R
is currently the Chairman of Treasure Target Limited, a shipping company B o R 5 A BT RN A IR B A PR A )
in Hong Kong owing and chartering bulkcarriers. From 1975 to 1977, he (KA LA B M MHAH)
was a field engineer in oil exploration business in North Sea in the United ZEF -H—hthERE—-LEEE %K

Kingdom with Schlumberger Wireline Services. ﬁmﬁi\Schlumberger Wireline Services> 75 % 2
) A D B b i 4R 8 2 Wik B PR SE S S AR
AR R o

*  For identification only * EGEER

Notes:

(1) EC — Executive Committee of the Board
(2) AC — Audit Committee of the Board
(3) RQNC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s

Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2013.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparence of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the management
are committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices

and an ethical corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2013,

with minor deviations as stated below.

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The roles of both the Chairman and the CEO
were performed by Datuk LIM Chee Wah which the Board considered
are for a transitional arrangement to cater for a smooth handover. In
this transitional period, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and CEO in the same person provides the Company with strong
and consistent leadership, and allows for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. On 3 July 2012, Mr.
XIAO Huan Wei, an Executive Director, was appointed as the Group Chief
Executive Officer in place of Datuk LIM Chee Wah. Since then, the roles of
the Chairman and the CEO have been separated.
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Pursuant to Code A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the Independent
Non-executive Directors, except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., are
appointed for a specific term. As one-third of all the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at each AGM pursuant to Article 133 of the Articles
of Association, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been made
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less

exacting than those stipulated in the CG Code.

In accordance with Article 133 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the directors shall retire from office by rotation whereas the Code A.4.2
states that each director shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years. As the Board consists of five Directors and each of them retires at least

once every three years, this effectively achieves the same objective as set out

in the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Company did not receive any
training record from Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei.

Following the retirement of Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. at the 2012 AGM,
the Company only has two Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Audit Committee members, the number of which falls below the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
On 16 November 2012, Mr. SOO Ying Pooi was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director and member of the Audit Committee to fill the

vacancy.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors take decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Programme

Every newly appointed director is provided with an induction pack to ensure
that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s business and
his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
Directors are provided with updates on latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements from time to

time, for example, Disclosure of Insider Information.

The Company will arrange and fund suitable training programmes for
the Directors in future. For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the

Company received the training records from the following directors:

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P
Mr. David YU Hon To

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2013, the Board comprises five directors including two
Executive Directors, namely, Datuk LIM Chee Wah (the Chairman) and
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer)
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Alan Howard

SMITH, ]J.P, Mr. David YU Hon To and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi.

With effect from 3 July 2012, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei was appointed as the
new Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer in place of Datuk
LIM Chee Wah.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. retired at the 2012 AGM and Mr. SOO
Ying Pooi was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 16

November 2012.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience and expertise and independence.
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Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

The Company, since April 2006, has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’
pany, P P

Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the

procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint a
director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders
(being two or more Sharcholders holding not less than ten per cent of the
entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate
candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meeting. RQN Committee can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next AGM and be eligible for re-election.

The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed directors to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Company and that they are fully aware of
their responsibilities under statute and common laws, the Listing Rules,
applicable legal requirements and other regulatory requirements and the

business and governance policies of the Company.

The Company has purchased Directors’ & Officers’ Liability insurance for

all Directors.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for
all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. The
Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense, to assist them perform their duties, as provided in the Company’s

“Guideline on Independent Professional Advice”.

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2013 and its

attendance record is set out below:—

Directors
#H
Datuk LIM Chee Wah B 0N E T
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei 4t 58 A2
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. S A 5 A K Ak
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. B A e N O e
(retired on 28 September 2012) (R_T— 4
JH =1 /)\HBME)
Mr. David YU Hon To fiT B ek
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi ok JFE it S A
(appointed on 16 November 2012) (R —F— 4
+—H+ N HERE)
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An Annual General Meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2013

and its attendance record is set out below:—

Directors

HE

Datuk LIM Chee Wah EX-PINE

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H M S e

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.D. ok i i 58 AR K P A

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. & A N O e
(retired on 28 September 2012) (AT — 4

JUH =+ J/\HELE)

Mr. David YU Hon To T3 S

Mr. SOO Ying Pooi R B il S A
(appointed on 16 November 2012) (RZT—Z4

+—A+ANHERE)

Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, representing over half of the full
Board members. One of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Board received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written confirmation of their independence and has satisfied their

independence as required by the Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term
except Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P, who does not have a fixed term
of appointment, but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM. According to the Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors who served longest on the Board
since they were last elected, shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election
at the AGM. Pursuant to Code A.4.2 of the CG Code, every Director shall
retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board will ensure each
Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years in order to

comply with the code provisions of the CG Code.
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According to the Article 110 of the Articles of Association, a Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to

re-election by shareholders at the first AGM after his/her appointment.

Pursuant to Code A.4.3 of the CG Code, if an independent non-executive
director serves more than 9 years, his further appointment should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Alan
Howard SMITH, J.P. (“Mr. Smith”) has served on the Board for more than
9 years but he has never held any executive or management position in the
Group nor has he throughout such period been under the employment of
any member of the Group. The Directors noted the positive contributions
of Mr. Smith to the development of the Company’s strategy and policies
through independent, constructive and informed contributions supported
by his skills, expertises and qualifications and from his active participations
at meetings. Further, he has given the annual confirmations of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company
and the RQN Committee has assessed and is satisfied of the independence
of Mr. Smith. Hence, the Board believes that the long services of Mr. Smith
would not affect his exercises of independent judgments, and therefore
considers Mr. Smith to be independent and recommended Mr. Smith to

stand for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with each other.

Chairman and CEO

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO have been clearly defined
in the Company’s “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”. On 3 July 2012, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei was appointed as
the Group Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Datuk LIM Chee Wah,
the Chairman of the Board, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
that the Board works effectively and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed in a timely manner. Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, the CEO, who takes the

lead in the Group’s operation and business development.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.
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Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQN Committee of the
Company and delegated authority to them for overseeing certain aspects of
the Company’s affairs. There are clear written terms of reference for Board
Committees. Reports of committee meetings are presented to the Board

regularly.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors. The
Executive Committee is chaired by Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, and the other
member is Datuk LIM Chee Wah.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company and
its principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors who possess appropriate business, legal, engineering and financial
experience and skills to undertake review of financial statements in
accordance with good practice of financial reporting. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. David YU Hon To and the other two members are Mr.
Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P. retired at the 2012 AGM and Mr. SOO Ying
Pooi was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 16 November
2012.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the External Auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the External Auditor, and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(2) to develop and implement policy on engaging External Auditor for

provision of non-audit services;

(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board; and

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems.
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2013 and its attendance record is set out below:

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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B E
HH HiliR/e 1 LiliR/Q 1 i (%)
Mr. David YU Hon To AR S A 2 2 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. S o Ay S A KT A 2 2 100
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. A e N O e
(retired on 28 September 2012) (R =F——F
JUA =+ I/\HEE) 1 1 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi R JRE 31T S 2R
(appointed on 16 November 2012) (A=T— 4
T—H+TANHEZEE) 1 1 100

The main work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 March 2013 included the review of External Auditor’s audit plan and
interim, annual financial statements and results announcements as well
as audit reports. It has also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control system, approved the internal audit report and reviewed and

recommended the appointment and re-appointment of External Auditor.

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN”)
Committee

The RQN Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Chairman of the Board. The Committee is chaired by Mr.
Alan Howard SMITH, ].P., who was appointed on 28 September 2012, in
place of Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.. The other three members are Datuk
LIM Chee Wah, Mr. David YU Hon To and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi.

Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P, the former Chairman of the Committee,
retired at the 2012 AGM. Mr. SOO Ying Pooi was appointed as a member
of the RQN Committee on 16 November 2012.

The RQN Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its
principal duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and to
draw up procedures for formulating an incentive-based remuneration
policy. The RQN Committee is authorized by the Board to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on remuneration of Non-executive Directors. No Director or senior
management or any of his associate will be involved in deciding his own

remuneration.
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The RQN Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

The RQN Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 March

2013 and its attendance record is set out below:

Directors
#Hf
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. 2 5 71 1 - K R A
(retired on 28 September 2012) (=4
JUH =+ /\HBAE)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. L UCHE B WA N B e
Datuk LIM Chee Wah XD e
Mr. David YU Hon To B e A
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi ok il Se A
(appointed on 16 November 2012) (R =F— 4
+—HA+ANHEZE)

The main work performed by the RQN Committee during the year ended
31 March 2013 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
recommendation and approval of the directors’ fees of Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors and reviewed and approved
the year 2013/14 remuneration package of Executive Directors of the
Company. It has also reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, recommended the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and

assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the
Group. Under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function,
the Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations; review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors;
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, the Directors have complied with the Model

Code in their securities transactions during the year ended 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests of the Directors in shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Name of Directors Nature of Interests

HHEEH HE 45 1 B

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
SRR

Interests in Shares — Corporate Interests
TA TRy 2 B 2 — 4 W 4 4R
Interests in Share Options — Personal

Interests

A S P e 2 e 2 — A\ M 25

e —
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Notes:

1.  The corporate interests of 1,069,308,000 shares are held by VXLCPL, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Datuk LIM Chee Wah (“Datuk
LIM”). The interests in 1,069,308,000 shares comprises 769,308,000 shares
and 300,000,000 shares which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and Huge
More respectively. Huge More has been a wholly-owned subsidiary of VXLCPL
since 7 May 2010. Datuk LIM is also a director and the beneficial owner of
VXLCPL.

2. The 4,400,000 share options granted to Datuk LIM under the Share Options
Scheme have been lapsed on 23 August 2012 and details of the interests in share
options are set out separately in the section “Interest in share options of the

Company”.

3. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares or

underlying shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
recorded in the register maintained under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of every person, other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company, as recorded in the register maintained by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

Nature of Interests
JBt 3K 44 T BE 25 P8

VXL Capital Partners

Corporation Limited

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests
B Z 2 — B A HE 2D
Interest in Shares

— Controlled Corporation

T ey Z M 2 — S 4 5 T

Interests in Shares — Beneficial Interests

T B A 2 M 2 — B A A

Huge More Limited

1. #%1,069,308,000 /8 Mt 43 Z 2 5] # 2% i
VXLCPL ( BB (THhER]) 2 EH®
R 2 A ) R 7%1,069,308,000/% i
$r Z B 25 A 45 43 73 VXLCPLX Huge More
Bt B Z769,308,000/8 5% 300,000,000 8
fre AR —F4 N H Lt HE - Huge More
R VXLCPLZ 2 & Kt 8 2w o bk B I8 2%
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Ordinary shares/

underlying shares

Approx. %

Note of HK$0.01 each of issued shares
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Mt 58 1,/ b 1 BE#E
1 769,308,000 50.3%

1 300,000,000 19.6%

1 300,000,000 19.6%
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Notes:

1. The interest in 1,069,308,000 shares comprises 769,308,000 shares and
300,000,000 shares which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and Huge More
respectively. Huge More has been wholly-owned by VXLCPL since 7 May 2010.
Datuk LIM is also a director and the beneficial owner of VXLCPL.

2. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares and

underlying shares.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited had resigned as External Auditor of the
Company with effect from 26 February 2013 and PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”) have been appointed as the new External Auditor of the Company

with effect from 28 February 2013 to fill the casual vacancy.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013
were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that PwC be
nominated for appointment as the External Auditor of the Company at the

forthcoming AGM.

PwC provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements and
to report its opinion solely to the sharecholders, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee is
obliged to ensure continuing External Auditor’s objectivity and safeguard

independence.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, audit fee and non-audit fee amounted to
approximately HK$983,000.

T .
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DIRECTOR’S AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2013. In preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and made judgments under circumstances and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Group.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the External Auditor of the Company, has
presented its responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out

on pages 36 to 37.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

In the Company, the Board has overall responsibility for internal controls
and reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal
and that the interests of shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company reviewed the
need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and considered it was
appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the internal audit
functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external accounting
firm as Internal Auditors to provide internal audit services to the Group on

an annual basis.
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The Internal Auditors have conducted evaluation and tests in connection
with the following management’s assertions for the year ended 31 March

2013:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group including financial

reporting, operational and compliance controls is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.

The Internal Auditors also formulate the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conduct periodic independent reviews on the operations of each
division to identify any irregularities and risks, develop action plans and
make recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1, the
directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the Group and
further improve the system with respect to financial control, operational
control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Ms. LIM Yi Ping, who has been appointed by the
Board and has been so nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“BCS”) under an engagement letter made between the Company
and BCS. The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.

XIAO Huen Wei.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the Company.
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the issued share
capital of the Company have statutory rights pursuant to Section 113 of
the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong to call for extraordinary general
meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders by
sending to the Company Secretary at the registered office address a written
request for such general meetings duly signed by the shareholders concerned

together with the proposed agenda items.

Shareholders representing not less than one-fortieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders or of not less than 50 members holding shares
in the Company on which there has been paid up to an average sum of
not less than HK$2,000 per shareholder, may put forward proposals for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company by sending to the
Company Secretary at the registered office address a written request for such
proposals according to Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance of Hong

Kong.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to sharecholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and the

Company following the general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board
attended the 2012 annual general meeting and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, the RQN Committee and the independent Board Committee
(where applicable), or in their absence, other members of the respective

committees, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 38.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer was approximately 31.2% of the Group’s total turnover
and the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for approximately 55.5% of the Group’s total turnover.

The purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 33.3% of the Group’s total purchases and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for

approximately 79.9% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers noted above.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the year (year ended 31
March 2012: NIL).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 42

and Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2013, calculated
under section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to NIL (31

March 2012: NIL).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 129.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Key terms of the Scheme are summarized below:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the growth and development of the

Group;

The participants of the Scheme include any employee or officer
(whether full time or part time, and including any Executive Director
but excluding any Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Director) of any company within the Group or any Invested

Entity (as defined in the Scheme);

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Scheme
unless approval from the Shareholders has been obtained. The
number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Group if such grant would result in the 30% limit being

exceeded;

Unless approved by Sharcholders in general meeting, the total number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted to
any Eligible Participant (as defined in the Scheme) under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period during which an option
is exercised by the grantee, shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares for the time being in issue. Any grant of options to a substantial
Sharcholder or any of their respective Associates in aggregate more
than 0.1% of Shares in issue, and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price on the date of such grant, in excess of HK$5.0

million, must be approved by Shareholders in general meeting;

Wi Jie HE T
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(vi)

(vii)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period (which may not expire later
than 10 years from the date of grant) to be notified by the Board to
cach grantee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its sole
discretion, there is no requirement on the minimum period for which
any option granted or to be granted must be held or the performance

targets which must be achieved before the option can be exercised;

A non refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of consideration for
the grant of an option is required to be paid by each grantee upon
acceptance of the option. An option may be accepted by a grantee

within 28 days from the date of offer of grant of the option;

The subscription price payable upon exercising any particular option
granted under the Scheme is determined based on a formula: P = N x
Ep, where “P” is the subscription price; “N” is the number of shares to
be subscribed; and “Ep” is the exercise price of the highest of (a) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of offer; (b) the official closing
price of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer; and (c) the average of the official closing
prices of Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

offer and as adjusted pursuant to the clauses of the Scheme; and

(viii) The life of the Scheme is until the tenth anniversary of the adoption

date of the Scheme or the date on which the Scheme is terminated by

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting, whichever is earlier.

)

(vi)

(vii)
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EREHRE (5)

As at 31 March 2013, details of share options granted to Directors and RoF—-=F=H=+—H HWEFHKT

employees under the Scheme and outstanding are:— TR BOm RAT B 2 R RERE T
No. of Share Options
Ji I B 2 H
Exercise Share Cancelled/ Share
Price Options Granted Exercise lapsed Options
Date of per Share as at during during during as at
Grantees Grant  Exercise Period (HKS$) 1/4/2012 the year the year the year  31/3/2013
i
it “g-=k
bl %4 ARAERE =f
fEf  WMA—H AR KA id/ =t—H
BN i H fiEE (W)  Z MR # il fif KRB MR
Directors: f
Datuk LIM Chee Wah FEMEE 23/8/2007  23/8/2007 to 0.77 4,400,000 = — (4,400,000) Nil
22/08/2012
Employees: fEH :
Aggregate total of employees EREH] 23/8/2007 23/8/2007 to 0.77 4,800,000 - - (4,800,000) Nil
22/08/2012
9,200,000 - - (9,200,000) Nil
Notes: B 5
1. The share options to subscribe for Shares are exercisable as to: 1o JGEJBERE mI A TR ) IR B AT AR DA SR 0 R A
(i)  For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less than two () BEEERZH H A 28R A AR
years immediately before date of grant: ZHEPREHIN S :
(a) up to 20% immediately after date of grant; () EHERM AMRRSIE20% 3
(b) up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of grant; (b) EBERM AW 2 RS
#£46.7% 3
() up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and (0 ZBpEihH G240 A RS
#73.3% 3 &
(d) up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant. (d) EhBER M AR 30 H Rk %
E100% ©
(ii)  For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than two (i) BRI H W C 2R R R EZ
years immediately before date of grant: #A R H S
(a) up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of grant; (@ FEBERM AR 2 RixS
7£33.3%
(b) up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of grant; and (b) EBE#RM H 240 H Rk %
PE66.7% 3 ]t
()  up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of grant. (c) ZEHEFZH HBRE 36 HZRZ
7£100% ©

As at the date of this Annual Report, there is no outstanding share option H1 149,200,000 J# B HE © 7 48 19 R 8K > O
available to subscribe for shares under share options scheme as 9,200,000 A AE i S RO AL 02 e R T O e
options were lapsed during the year. B3 i AR AT 2 S e i o
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2013 and up to the date of

this Annual Report were:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J. P.
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, J.P.
(retired on 28 September 2012)
Mr. David YU Hon To
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi
(appointed on 16 November 2012)

In accordance with Article 133 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. David YU Hon To, who has been longest in office since last election will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer himself

for re-election.

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi, who was appointed as INED to fill a casual vacancy on
16 November 2012, will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,

offers himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Code A.4.3 of the CG Code, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, ].P,
who has served on the Board for more than 9 years, will be re-appointed

by a separate resolution to be approved by sharcholders at the forthcoming
AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 7 to 10.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the year, Mr. David YU Hon To was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director of China Resources Gas Group Limited and Keck Seng
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited on 28 December 2012 and 1 April 2013
respectively, which are listed on the Stock Exchange. The remuneration of Mr.
Xiao Huan Wei was revised to HK$5,433,023 for a two-year contract with

effect from 1 October 2012.

Except as set out in this report, there is no change in the information of
the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) to Listing
Rules.

e —
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EREHRE (5)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors nor his/her Associates was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders” Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 11 to 27 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”) was the external auditor of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2012. It resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 26 February 2013.

Following the resignation of Pan-China, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”)
was appointed as the external auditor of the Company with effect from 28
February 2013 to fill the casual vacancy and to hold office of the Company

until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to appoint PwC as external
auditor of the Company.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year

ended 31 March 2013 have been audited by PwC.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R &

e
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 126, which comprise the consolidated and company
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the director, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2013, and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 June 2013
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2013 2012
e ey TR
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Fif & T# 5t Tt
Turnover -E S 5 6,627 6,436
Other gain Hfth 2 F1) 6 1,619 32,384
Revaluation gain on investment properties % 3 WA LR 4,085 979
Staff costs 1 B A 7 (11,860) (8,033)
Depreciation and amortization P18 % i (7,548) (7,291)
Other operating expenses, net A 2% %85 BH S (14,100) (28,348)
Operating loss B ER (21,177) (3,873)
Finance income W #H WA 9 458 383
Finance costs Rl AR 10 (46,636) (48,583)
Loss before taxation i o6 T M 4 (67,355) (52,073)
Taxation charge Tt JE 2 HY 11 (5,172) (345)
Loss for the year FENER (72,527) (52,418)
Other comprehensive income: FE A 2 i W
Movement in financial assets available for sale W] fit Hi £ Ff 7 ¥ 25 5% B - (521)
Currency translation differences AW e B 5% A 809 14,404
Property revaluation gain Yy A B 6,968 12,025
Other comprehensive income for the year, AR g Al 2 T WO
net of tax BB IH 7,777 25,908
Total comprehensive loss for the year AR TN 4 T i TH AR AR (64,750) (26,510)
Loss for the year attributable to VLR % J7 BEA 4 4R
Owners of the Company ENASTE, 2 DN (70,799) (52,418)
Non-controlling interest I ¢ T 2 (1,728) -
(72,527) (52,418)
Total comprehensive loss for the year VLR & 5 REA 42
attributable to A THI s 1 48
Owners of the Company VN/STE: 2PN (63,231) (26,510)
Non-controlling interest ¥ IR HE 2% (1,519) -
(64,750) (26,510)
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share  NYNEIE T EE R DN
for loss for the year attributable to equity JRE A 4 M s 1R 2
holders of the Company A T ¥ 0 e e A e
1 9 M 1R 13 HK(4.63) cents# fll  HK(3.43) cencsifl

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Positio

Asar 31 March 2013 R = F—==H=+—H

2013 2012
R =4 R
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i & il Tl
Non-current assets I Ui B B
Property, plant and equipment ESN 19 &L ] 15(a) 203,842 246,217
Land use rights o oA R 16 51,322 66,909
Investment properties wEmE 17 128,405 93,758
Construction in progress TE# TR 18 6,367 4,468
Available-for-sale financial assets ] Ak B B 20 1,128 1,128
Receivables, prepayments and deposits B WAk I~ A K e A 21 7,243 51,097
398,307 463,577
Current assets i B A
Assets held for sale e g g E 22 87,901 -
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WLk T ~ FELAS AR B % 4 21 4,411 21,409
Bank balances and cash SRAT & Bl 4 23 90,806 125,059
183,118 146,468
Current liabilities i B £
Payables and accruals FEAT 3 R BEFHIE B 24 107,347 64,364
Liability component of compound Bals TR A8
financial instrument 25 - 25,635
Liabilities classified as held for sale SERFEREZ A 22 749 -
Borrowings lig 26 448,383 441,696
556,479 531,695
Net current liabilities i B £ RO A (373,361) (385,227)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R D B AL 24,946 78,350
Non-current liabilities I R B AR
Deferred income tax liabilities 95 JE T 45 Bl A A 27 19,803 8,457
19,803 8,457
Net assets EREEM 5,143 69,893

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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2013 2012
R =R IR -IA

Note HKS$’000 HK$’000

i3 T T T
EQUITY RE 23
Share capital JBe A% 28 15,296 15,296
Reserves it 30(a) (98,528) (68,767)
Total shareholders’ deficit T S i A 4 (83,232) (53,471)
Non-controlling interest I ¢ T HE 2 25 88,375 123,364
Total equity HE 25 A8 A0 5,143 69,893

Approved by the Board on 6 June 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board
by:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah
B bk B

Director

#HF

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Statement of Financial Positio

Asar 31 March 2013 R = F—==H=+—H

2013 2012
TR = R
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi 5k F#x T oo
Non-current assets I Ui Bh B
Property, plant and equipment Y3k ~ AR B S 15(b) - 12
Interests in subsidiaries Fi JE§ 2 ) HE i 19 330,000 330,000
330,000 330,012
Current assets i B B A
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WLk I~ TR AR B % 4 21 202 315
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wi B} JiEg 2 ] ek JE 19 56,794 51,687
Bank balances and cash RAT A B4 23 148 271
57,144 52,273
Current liabilities i Bh £ fif
Payables and accruals JE A 3 JE % HERHIE H 24 1,815 1,741
Borrowings &k 26 448,383 405,640
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A BiF g 2 R sk I 19 23,904 13,771
474,102 421,152
Net current liabilities i R=R R (416,958) (368,879)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R DU B A (86,958) (38,867)
Net liabilities A (86,958) (38,867)
EQUITY HE £3
Share capital JBe A% 28 15,296 15,296
Reserves Tkt 30(b) (102,254) (54,163)
Total equity B g AR (86,958) (38,867)

Approved by the Board on 6 June 2013 and signed on behalf of the Board

by:

Datuk LIM Chee Wah

B bk B
Director

#HF

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei
H e f ek

Director

#HF
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LT E Rz N 4]
Available- Employee
for-sale  share-based Non-
Share Share Capital financial ~ compensation Exchange  Revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve - assets reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest equity
wihE DR b
it B B MK
Bk Rebibt  ERRE B WEREE WRRE O EEEE  REHER BE kBmEE  REAE
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
¥ T i T Tk ¥ ¥ ¥ T T#x T
Ac31 March 2011 REF-—EZJ=4—R 15,296 152,049 - 521 3431 35,924 - (3418 (26961) 123,364 96,403
Loss for the year FERER - - - - - - - (52,418) (52,418) - (52,418)
Other comprehensive income: P I TN
Translation exchange difference ST 2 4 - - - - - 14,404 - - 14,404 - 14,404
Available-for-sale financial assets B A
- release of reserve upon disposal — A R e i - - - (844) - - - - (844) - (844)
Impairment loss reclassified from BTkt i o
available-for-sale financial assets BEER R
reserve ZHEER - - - 323 - - - - 323 - 323
Deferred tax on revaluation increase B SRR - - - - - - (8,116) - (8,116) - (8,116)
Property revaluation fES 0] - - - - - - 20,141 - 20,141 - 20,141
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERATERAH - - - (521) - 14,404 12,025 (52,418) (26,510) - (26,510)
Tﬂnsfﬂ o ﬂccumulﬂmd lOSSCS mﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ”ﬁ§
upon lapse of share options RitEH - - - - (844) - - 844 - - -
- - - - (844) - - 844 - - -
At31 March 2012 REF-ZEZAZEH 15,296 152,049 - - 2587 50,328 12,025 (285,756) (53471) 123,364 69,893
Loss for the year EREH - - - - - - - (70,799) (70,799) (1,729) (72,527)
Other comprehensive income: K2 mkA:
Translation exchange difference SR HER - - - - - 600 - - 600 209 809
Deferred tax on revaluation increase B EERE - - - - - - (6,050) - (6,050) - (6,050)
Property revaluacion ES A - - - - - - 13,018 - 13,018 - 13,018
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERATEHARH - - - - - 600 6,968 (70,799) (63,231) (1,519) (64,750)
15,296 152,049 - - 2,587 50,928 18,993 (356,55) (116,702) 121,845 5,143
Conversion of preferred shares B e A
by a subsidiary (Note 25) (Hik2s) - - 51,671 - - (13,282) (4919) - 33470 (33,470) -
Transfer to accumulated losses TR Ry
upon lapse of share options Zithf - - - - (2,587) - - 2,587 - - -
Total transactions with owners SUHEA N2 2 5 - - 51,671 = (2,587) (13,282) (4,919) 2,587 33,470 (33,470) -
4031 March 2013 RoB-SHESASE-H 526 12000 51671 - - s W BRI BB) 8 516

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow:

EABERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4F &

2013 2012
—E = R —TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
K T#x T¥#T
Operating activities REWD
Loss before taxation i 5t Wi e 4R (67,355) (52,073)
Adjustments for: ik
Finance costs il AR 10 46,636 48,583
Depreciation and amortization e B 8 7,548 7,291
Gain on disposal of property, plant and MEWE - BER
equipment and assets held for sale L e (i
BREZ B - (6,006)
Gain on transfer of interest in properties e SR T: £VE S
before completion of acquisition HE £ Z ) - (3,283)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B ) 4 B
financial assets BEZHER 6 - (21,892)
Available-for-sale financial assets A Bt B
— release of reserve upon disposal — H A I A 5 A 6 - (844)
Reversal of provision for receivable 85 ] MO US4 8 (4,100) -
Written back of other payable 85 ] 2 Ath JE 5 K 0 6 (1,427) -
Fair value gain on investment properties BHEWEZ N TAEEF 17 (4,085) (979)
Impairment loss reclassified from B T4 R B A
available-for-sale financial assets reserve T B WAE e 1B 8 - 323
Changes in working capital BEEEEH
Decrease in receivables, prepayments and JRE Wk T ~ A sk T B
deposits 4 WA 20,799 6,597
Decrease in payables and accruals JE A 3k TE % M T IE H
WA (12,875) (12,068)
Net cash outflow used in operations REBEHBR SR B FHE (14,859) (34,351)
Income tax paid CAY A3 Bt (7) (4)
Net cash outflow used in operating activities HMEWHHEwbig®H (14,866)  (34,355)
B4 A B ]

2012/2013 4E i
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Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kk T#x T#t
Investing activities BEEH
Purchase of property, plant and JiE A 3 - RS Tk DA I
equipment and land use rights - M fi R (8,952) (8,018)
Additions of construction in progress WEfEE TR (1,899) (13,031)
Proceeds from disposal and refund from B 3~ HEAR TR T A%
termination of acquisition contract for K B A% R 3 B
property, plant and equipment A WO B 4 2 B - 107,574
Deposits received for disposal of equity W 5 O ) TR RE 2
interest in subsidiaries W& 56,782 -
Net cash inflow generated from BREGHZBSWAFH
investing activities 4 5,931 86,525
Financing activities il 3 B
Repayment of loan 18R B R (35,470) (15,845)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid TR A E R E R4 A & 56 4 (601) (607)
Interest paid gt F & (3,385) (7,146)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest 16 2 B M 2 S A I B (26,100) -
Net cash outflow used in financing activities MEWHZHEwkE® (65,556)  (23,598)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 RBLESED
(W) /4 (34,491) 28,572
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April WA —HZBE& R
B&%Em 125,059 96,350
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ 5. 58 ) 2 5% 238 137
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March REAZ+—HZEHEK
Bl EY 23 90,806 125,059

The notes on pages 45 to 126 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

sam Repor o205 . .. R, SRS

SE4SH R 126 H Z Wif ik i A AR & T B R

Z ks e




1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The principal activities of VXL Capital Limited (the “Company”) and

its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are (i) hotel investment and
operations and (ii) property investment, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Room 603A, 6th Floor,
Empire Centre, No. 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Directors consider the immediate and ultimate
holding company to be VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited
(“VXLCPL”), incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and available-for-sale financial assets. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar thousands, unless

otherwise stated.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$373.4 million and a shareholders’ deficit of HK$83.2
million. In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Group reported a loss of HK$72.5 million and a net operating
cash outflow of HK$14.9 million. The above conditions indicate
the existence of uncertainties which may cast doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Notwithstanding
the above, the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a

going concern basis.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Aok 1 T 285 A M

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4F &

— PR

LR 4 A R A R (TAA W] 1) B3 Fit
B Aw (GG T AREE]) 2 FEEER
OIS Y & -5 SNV AML/E L'
HA s A W 2 R RN S
A MR o

A T R A AR W RE R L 2 A R AT
ST T S < k2 0 U HE AR D MEL SR
JEE 3 N )\ R A B RO N P 603A
%’0

ARAFRBEWB LA IARAF L
T o 2 5 G 2 I S B L B e MR
3. Z VXL Capital Partners Corporation
Limited ([VXLCPL ) % B #% J f5 # ¥
West o

FEEEFEOR
SRR A B A TR 2 R S

BOREIIMT - BRI A R - TR
S5 BB BT IR A — B

2.1 f WAL

A5 I A 5 R T AR R A W
Rt A A 2 R B R
Q) (77 o 5 et e 0 ) 4
B o f 5 S 5 A T ML B R B AR
A - SR T A S T
H B B A BT © BR 5 A 1
WIAh > M B WAL TIU T T 2
5

NoR-ZHE=ZH=+—HAK
45 A i B £ 5 3 #373,400,000
W0 & B R 483,200,000 JC ©
WH R BRE_R—-=ZF=H
= H IR - AR BT
72,500,000% 7€ K i &8 8 B4 U
14,900,000% JG o I 7t AR Ui 5 7R 47
TES WY BH PR 2 - AT e A A 4 T 4 A
PR AL IR 2 8 17 R o RS
SR A > fE A S R T R 4
FE-$ 3 L

B4 A FRA 7
2012/2013 4E )t
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s to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

B et (%)

ended 31 March 2013 B & =@ — =4 = =+—H L%

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In order to alleviate the Group’s liquidity risk, management is
implementing various measures to improve its cash flows. The
Group maintained its strategies of developing its properties
into hotels or commercial offices for leasing or sales, or, when
appropriate, outright sale to improve its liquidity. During the
year, the Group has entered into agreements for the disposals
of hotel properties located in the cities of Wafangdian and Tu
Lu Fan for a consideration of RMB38.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$47.2 million) and RMB16.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$19.9 million) respectively. As
at 31 March 2013, deposits of RMB46.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$57.3 million) were received in connection
with these disposals. Residual balance of RMB8.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$9.8 million) is expected to be
received in the coming year when the disposals are completed.
On 31 May 2013, “U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited
(R FAEWER R AR ) (‘UHILY), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into two Equity Transfer Agreements with two
independent third parties to sell 100% equity interest of “U”
Inns & Hotels (Xiang Fan) Management Co., Limited (%
A (R ) WEEHARAT) (“Xiangfan”) and “U” Inns &
Hotels (Bu Er Jin) Management Co., Limited (4% i) %480 & 45
P (A THSR) B RAF) (“Bu Er Jin”) for the consideration
of RMB24.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$31.4
million) and RMB9.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$11.7 million) respectively. Deposits of RMB27.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$34.7 million) were received in
connection with these disposals on the date of the Equity Transfer

Agreements.

2. EREHEHBUR (H)

2.1 #a AL HE (4)

T WK A 42 B 2 O ) 4 R B
PG BOE AT 2 H A R E B
&R o AR 2 OR WE A AR S Ol
W 3 BE i R T N ST M
BERL S S8 Bk (R T)
Bl A - DL 5 3 Bk o 4R
P9 > A 45 8 BT % 6 ek B LR B
o i Bk 8 7 T 2 3 R
843 5l %5 N\ R4 38,100,0007C (FH
B A #147,200,0009 58 ) K N B
16,200,0007C (FHE 72 4719,900,000
WT) R F-=EHE=ZA=Z+—
H - 7S 45 8 Ot 06 25 B S 0 K
W4 N\ R ¥46,200,00070 (%
W #157,300,000% 76 ) © i BN R
#8,000,0007C (%5 i #19,800,000
v 0 ) TH W A 4 56 B H B R I
WMo R _F—-=ZFHA=Z+—H>
AR 2 ) B 2 B AR M &R s A
R AR ([UIHIL J ) 828 [ % 8 5 58
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D) AR IRAE - ARAE 43 Bl 2 N\ R
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RA111,700,0009 70 ) o A4 [ L
JBe HRE Wl i O % A Hh B K
Bk 4 N R ¥27,600,00078 (FH
R #134,700,000878) ©




2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had amounts due to VXLCPL,
the ultimate holding company, totaling HK$448.4 million. In
May 2013, management has obtained agreements from VXLCPL,
who agreed to extend the repayment of the above borrowings to
30 September 2014. Based on the Group’s cash flow projection
and taking into account the reasonably possible changes in the
trading performance, the directors believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash flows to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the next twelve months from the date
of the consolidated statement of financial position. Moreover,
VXLCPL has confirmed its intention to provide continuous
financial support to the Group so as to enable the Group to meet
all its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to
enable the Group to continue its businesses for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed

in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
The Group has adopted the new and revised HKFRSs below,
which are relevant to its operations, in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements.

to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

o A A IR AR W R ()

f‘ For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ —F—=4#=H =+—H IL /¥

2. EREHHBUR (H)

2.1 #a AL R (4)

RoB-ZFE=ZA=Z+—H &
45 ] A B ¢ i JB A W] VXILCPLZ.
SRIE A 3£448,400,0008 7T o A %
— =40 g T VXLCPL
] T bl £ K < PR K O A B
FEZR-WNENLA=ZTH M
A 4 8 2 B4 i R T 0 R ST
K 5 EBI e B A B H)
1% o 3 FAHAE - A I Hofe 2 A
B 4 At B AT O 45 5 B R R
R+ ZAE A R B Z % A o
% > VXLCPLE e 58 3 i 48 49 1) A
A5 B BE B s S o DA A AR A L
A B A B0 #1068 RS - e A
VB T LR R A A A L o
PRt > 3 3 Rk 4 R A 0 S e AR
Bk A T B R T A

A L A T v T R T 2 A
EMBHREFTERMETERY
AR > T WRF R 5 B A B A E
A 45 R BOR Z AR A A
B o v5 ) B R R R R A
J7 I - SRR B AN e B A A
R R E R Z )y o 78RR
ATk o

AW A g O E TR A
5 T A ot 0 T KR S R R
T NG 5T 7o 988 B 705 i o5 Y JU o A A
P A B AR N > AR AR A
5 L A B R AT B AR
W 7 o o R )

R T, .
2012/2013 4E )t

47



|
2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGHEOR ()

| (Continued)
2.1 SRR YE ()
(a) EFABRZ )

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

48

(a)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

Change in accounting policy

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12
“Income taxes” to introduce an exception to the principle
for the measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities

arising on an investment property measured at fair value.

REF-RETTH BFEE
st Bl 2 18 5T 7 it e
SE129E TR 3 AL > B4R A F
it B2 HEWERIBZ

HKAS 12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax A S I B R R A R 2 R

relating to an asset depending on whether the entity expects JER GBI AME DL - 8

to recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or B 298 B E T

sale. B I A A B 0 A
IR - ZEH P T O 5 W B0
i FH 2t B A B i e T
e Vi

The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that
an investment property measured at fair value is recovered
entirely by sale. The amendment is applicable retrospectively
to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

with early adoption permitted. The Group has adopted this

EALHEIVN LK
B R A PR Z B E Y
S AU A e o AT
AR - W =T A
—H— H B 1% P i 2 4 %

amendment in current year and the directors consider the 01 > 3 AT R S BR A o A 4

Group’s investment properties are recovered entirely by sale. A AR AR BE SR A LI AE 3T - 1M

This amendment has no significant impact on the Group’s FEHRDAAREE B G %

consolidated financial statements. 2 YU A B W] o L IEAERT
HACAR ) 2 A B R R
JiE 7K B o

There are no other amended standards or interpretations
that are effective for the first time for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 April 2012 that would be expected

to have a material impact on the Group.

3 JHE 3C At Y —F — ARG H
— H 8 4% B ik 2 st Y
B A R A A T o R R
R TEUJY) oy A 4R O R K
W
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Company

The following standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published which are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April

2013 or later periods, have not been early adopted by the

) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (7

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4F &

2. EREHHBUR (H)

Company:

HKEFRS 1 (Amendment)

Government Loans (effective for annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
HKEFRS 9 (Amendments) Financial Instruments (effective for annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2015)
HKEFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
(effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2013)
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013)
HKERS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKEFRS 12 (Amendments)

(effective for annual period beginning

on or after 1 January 2013)

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance (effective for annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

2.1 R (4H)

(b) AR AR T AR A ] I S 12
IR R PR 2 B A
ZERT R it
DL 3 ) DL B 3 B AT e ) 2
BT TR > MR AR W AE
F=FMA - HEZKH
iy o a9 ) e A% 0] ) iR
) A 2> WA A ) S B i LR
4

FRUHRSEN  AREK (RCZ2E-A

B (BTA) RN EE
B
BUMHRERA - IO R
(TR AR(RZZ-ZE-
~HRZ MR
W)
BRHEREEN  WETR(A-F-14-R
HoR (k) —HRZBRRZEE
MR
BREHERERA  BAMERE (R-F-2k
H0% il v4 |} v
MM
BUMHRERN  AEZH(R-R-25-0
g —RoZ R EE
MR
REHERGRA MR RGNS
VL (RZF-2k
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGHEOR ()

(Continued)
2.1 LR (4)

(b) i AR B R AR 4 3l JE B
IRAYZ R L Je 2 B QY
Z AT Rt FE ()

FRMBREEN  RENR(RCF-2E-

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yer effective and have not been early

adopted by the Company (Continued)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

Investment Entities (effective for annual period

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) beginning on or after 1 January 2013) J08 FEEE  —HRZERRZEE
(Amendment) BERUELER  ARAR)
AREHE
R (CF—
ERET)
(BiTk)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (effective for annual BEUHREEN  AFEHE(R2F-2E

period beginning on or after 1 January 2013) B35 ~A- g KRR
ERMEER)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of items of other comprehensive @il SALAEUARE (R2
income (effective for annual period beginning (BiTk) F-CRELA-AAzK
on or after 1 July 2012) Wi MR

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits (effective for annual period BROHENA N BHEN (R22-25-)
beginning on or after 1 January 2013) (Bilk) —HRz R

HiER)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements (effective for @i EAEE BuihRE (R-F-2k
annual period beginning on or after 1 January (ZE-—f R4 L 7
2013) HET) ERARER)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures FREHENSSE MEEARRABRELR
(effective for annual period beginning on or (ZF——% B(R=F—Z4—f
after 1 January 2013) agi —BRZ BRI

HRAER)

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Fb@HEaAng AR AR R (R
Liabilities (effective for annual period (i k) ZE-ME-R-REZ
beginning on or after 1 January 2014) ERBZEERRER)

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Company (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine (effective for annual period

beginning on or after 1 January 2013)

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle
(effective for annual period beginning on or

after 1 January 2013)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards,
Amendments or Interpretations will have no material impact

on consolidated financial statements.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the related impact of adopting the above new standard,
amendments and revisions to existing standards to the
Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements will be

resulted.

 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R (A1)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 March 2013.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
sharcholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not
have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-

facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-

facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

sonoat Reperozoos NN ... . SN
Annual Report 2012/2013
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded

in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEGEIBUR (#)

(Continued)
2.3 BWor Bk

2.3 Separate financial statements

54
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less

TP BA RS 2 ) 2 48 R 0 B Tk

impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of {6 AR o BUAS R A5G BB EAL 0
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the AR o AR 2 ] 2 I B 5 I Wk I
Company on the basis of dividend and receivable. HE N B A W S AR AR o

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

(a) Functional and presentation currency

2.4

il 11 B 2 ) 45 O 2 B S
8 % W JBS o W) EUR B S Bz &
T HC A\ B8R - A % 5 P B S B
5 A A M T A A A
A (BT AR B
WA A Z MR T R > B 26 S R O
A 2 45 A A A o

g il i
B 4y W )G DA B iy A PR
BB P R TR B

maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for Z I REF - £ F 4L E IR K AEAG
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating B ERZ REEEYKAN
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the BARAF ZHITESE-
Company.

2.5 Foreign currency translation 2.5 B

() ZYERZEHE

Items included in the financial statements of each of the A 4 ) ] E S 2 T B kR
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the B 36 H 3 DA A B A
primary economic environment in which the entity operates SEW R AE 2 4 AR BR B
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial PR &% (Tshae &)
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”), Ho G WMBHMEUBTE
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s e KA ARA B Zh et ¥ K
presentation currency. AL R
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance stated at
statement of financial position presented are translated

at the closing rate at the end of reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the equity
holders of the Company are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Hotel properties 20 years
— Furniture and fixtures 3 — 5 years
— Office equipment and machinery 3 — 5 years
— Computer and related equipment 3 — 5 years
— Motor vehicles S years

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each of the end of reporting period.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately to write down
an asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are netted off or
recognised within “Other gain” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

2.7 Land use rights

Land use rights which are prepayment of land leases stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost represents consideration and directly attributable
transaction costs paid or payable for the rights to use the land for
periods between 30 and 50 years. Amortization of land use rights
is calculated on the straight-line method over the period of the

land use rights.

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

Aok 1 W 85 e M ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ _F—=4#=H=+—HIL &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for
as if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each of the end of reporting period by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the income statement as part of a

valuation gain or loss in “Other gain”.

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the
net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is made
if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount of
the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are

stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at

fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ category
are presented in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as part
of other operating income when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables

(c)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘Receivables, prepayments and
deposits’ and ‘Bank balances and cash’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).
Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the

effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or the Group intends
to dispose of the investment within 12 months after the end
of reporting period. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried
at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax, and accumulated in
equity in fair value reserve. The unlisted equity instruments,
for which the fair value is not reliably measurable, are
measured at cost. The fair value of unquoted instruments
is not reliably measurable if the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
instrument and the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in

estimating fair value.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group established fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on

entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each of the end of reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment of receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other operating expenses’. When a receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘Other operating expenses’ in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEGEIBUR (4#)

(Continued)
U4 ER REA BB LR

2.14 Borrowings and compound financial instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized

cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction

A KB 2 4% 2 T A WP A 2 R
Sy B TE G A ik A% 52 4 3 AR
FUMR > Br A sk JE (0 B 32 5 AR )

costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated SRV [ M B ] AT SR
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the TEAGE KO0 DL B R B TE AR A
borrowings using the effective interest method. 2 T UK 25 7 TR o

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it

relates.

Compound financial instrument issued by a subsidiary of the
Company comprises preferred shares that are convertible to
common shares of the subsidiary, and the number of shares to be
issued does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability
component of the compound financial instrument is recognised
initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the compound financial instrument is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of the compound financial instrument
is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition. The equity

component is allocated to the non-controlling interest.

At the time when the convertible preferred shares are converted
into ordinary shares, the difference between the equity
component and the relevant share disposed of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary was recognised directly in capital

reserve and attributable to the owners of the parent.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

Ak o WA 25 W M ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ _F—=4#=H=+—HIL &

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

2. EREHHBUR (H)

2.15 B30 B 3 % Fe 15 i

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised directly in consolidated statement
of changes in equity, in which case they are recognised in

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

reporting period are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A liability is recognized for the
estimated payment for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Bonus plans

(c)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees” basic salaries.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each end of
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added

taxes.
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(Continued)
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2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

i) Income from hotel room rental, food and beverage and
other services is recognised when the relevant services are

provided.

ii) Rental income receivable under operating leases is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

iii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

2.20 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

e i T 4 ) 4 AR RE A AR S
DIENERVE 3 L E RN 3V
e R -

DR AL RO AR
B WA T 18 B A B IR 5 R A
HE o

i) MR RS A e A
DL A5 35 4R B e R

i) AL WA TS AR B AR
2 I ] L 4] i o e 2

220 HE

ik L5 2 Ak I 246 3 2 968 i A
JE I % T e AR AN > U
RS 20 S0 T B LA © T LA AL
BEARAREME-

A5 1 1F 75 H BN

A A 2 A A AR ALY A DA
AR TS o RV R K IHALE
LR 7 A 2 90 25 LR A I AL
B MR A - DA R AE S P DA
AR LR



| &

h

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so
as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contin

ok B S R A M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # & = F—=# = =+—H L5

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group has not used any derivative financial

instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries in PRC
is carried out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”). Excom
identifies, evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors
the financial risk continuously to minimize the risk, such as
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest

rate risk and cash management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in HK dollars, United States
dollars (“US dollars”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its
investments which are located in the PRC. Considering
that the exchange rate between HK dollars and US dollars
is pegged, and that Renminbi is appreciating, the Group
believes its downside foreign exchange risk is minimal. The

Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to

hedge its foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 March 2013, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HK dollars, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$0.7 million (FY2012: HK$1.8 million) lower/higher
respectively. The movement in the profit or loss relates
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain/losses on
translation of RMB denominated trade and other receivables

and trade and other payables that affect revenues and other

income and costs.

For the translation risk as at 31 March 2013, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK dollars, with all
other variables held constant, total equity would have been

HK$15.6 million (FY2012: HK$20.3 million) higher/lower

respectively.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

Price risk

The Group is exposed to club debentures price risk which
is held by the Group and classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as available-for-sales financial
assets. The Group maintained club debentures investments
for long-term strategic purpose and the Group’s overall

exposure to price risk is not significant.

Credir risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables, investments and bank deposits. The exposures to

these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and
assess the adequacy of provision for impairment. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from receivables, prepayments and deposits
are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.1 J 5 JE B R R (A)

(d)

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources

including shareholder’s loan, orderly realisation of short-

term financial assets, receivables and certain assets that the

Group considers appropriate and advantageous to dispose

of. Equity and other long term financing including strategic

partnerships, or strategic joint ventures are also considered

by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group’s

objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of

funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s

available cash and other interest-bearing loans. The ultimate

holding company of the Company, VXLCPL, has confirmed

its intention to provide sufficient financial support to the

Group so as to enable the Group to meet all its liabilities

and obligations as and when they fall due and to enable the

Group to continue its business for the foreseeable future.

The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve

which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s

financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based

on the remaining period at the statement of financial

position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows. Balances due within 12 months approximate

their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

I ) 5 < LA

AREE BB — R H) T (B
JBe SRR~ AEAS B R R
WERAMTEZELTA
T 5 B 0 400 o~ EMAGEK
T e AU 2 ) 4 Fe i B
B4y o AR [ 7 6 [ % I
JBERE S FoAB R Al (LGSR
Wi 5 A TR AR SOR W A B
AF]) AT E ARG RN o A
B 2 H KR 2 7 A AR 4
M 2 W] B B4 K A E R
K > 7E B 4 Ak Ak B 3
Z [ AR o AR E] Z I
BB A R VXLCPLE HE S A
T 1) A 4 [ B A BA B X
F o LA ASE [ 2 DL RE A 3] 3]
Z A B o N A AL
B0 i v NS AR A A AR
E X

AR AR i O B A A A - R
3 S Y R 4 o i 2 AR T
0> 37058 o A 5 A
MBS B4 A

TRV M B AR DR E
FHIE I E 0 R 8 R A
A B T A 2 W) 2 B A AR
I8 2390 AL e AT 2 3 A o A
W FT 8 R A R B AR
B B B o Pl P B B
k12 5/ N o i DR
2 A o B L MR i A A o

R T,
2012/2013 4E i



74

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3. B b P (4H)

3.1 W R B A R (4
(d) & m A (AT

Less than Between 1 and

1 year 5 years
—4ER — B A
HK$'000 HK$’000
Tl Tt
Group L]
At 31 March 2013 RE-F-=#=ZA=1+—H
Borrowings i 3K 448,383 -
Payables and accruals JE Ak sk S % M w0 H 106,945 -
At 31 March 2012 RE-Z-ZH=ZA=1+—H
Borrowings g 441,696 -
Liability component of BaMEs TR Z A5
compound financial instrument 26,100 -
Payables and accruals JE A 3 T I S I H 62,002 -
Company A 2
At 31 March 2013 RE-F-=#=A=1+—H
Borrowings & 3 448,383 -
Payables and accruals JRE Ao 3k I B IR H 1,815 -
At 31 March 2012 RE-E-ZHE=ZA=1+—H
Borrowings 5 5K 405,640 -
Payables and accruals JEAT ik JE R EFHIE H 1,741 -

Note: Accrued employee benefits are excluded in this table.

BEF L = O S o 456 B R R L AR

e




| &

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

\ Ak W B SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BB E B A B ()

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 W E bs R & (4)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FF i iz
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits 7% 45 A R B AR B SRAT A7
and borrowings. The Group monitors and limits its interest R B A R o AR 55 T 7 0 A P 7
rate risk exposure through management of maturity profile, B BEAG  RERE K
currency mix and choice of fixed and floating interest rates. B R - B T B R
JE B
The Group does not have significant cash flow interest rate B8 WS A A AR NI A
risk as the interest-bearing assets have no significant impact ORGSR WOARAE M 3 R 52
to the Group. Borrowings bearing interest at fixed rates TR Z Bl it R 2 JEU B o %
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group I & B R 5E B Z A kA AR ER
manages its interest rate exposure of borrowings with a focus 7 32 O ST AEL P 0 L e o AR
on reducing the overall cost of debt. P 725 38 3 DA B AR
BRAAE B Ak A o
The Group currently does not use any interest rate A AR B Wi A AT ) A
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to hedge RATH A A ST M B TR
against its interest rate risk exposure. 3 HC B AR 52 2 ) R m B o
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 B A A e A B
The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity AR W 2 A SR A N
and debts, which include borrowings, bank balances and cash GRERSE % - b wifEak  R
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company which AT &5 0 B Bl 42 DA B AR Oy ) E 25
comprises the issued share capital and accumulated losses. A NFEAGRERS - AR A W HER FR A A
HE A% HE 55 I 0 5 AT IR [t R
At -

B O - BNt
2012/2013 4E i



76

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard

the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for

shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to

ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between

higher shareholders’ returns that might be possible with higher

levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by

a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economics conditions.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The

gearing ratios at 31 March 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

3. B B R B (1)

3.2 B E bR B (4)

A4 A P A R A IR A
4 A7 RE T A 2 B R4 436 T 2
Be X Fp AL 2 R0 BB R o A 4R
W SRR ok B A B AR > A
T DR IR do AR > 7 B B
HCE e (AT BB P B A K OK )
SR A 2 AR DL AR Z B 25 B
DRI 2 T AP 287 - 3 DAY R 68 19
05 Bl 1T R A A o

A 45 AR A B A b R B M
Ko B ZER DT TES
HE+—HZEARAMRNT

2013 2012

ZE = R T

HK$’000 HK$’000

T THT

Total borrowings (Note 26) 5 sk A (Bhk26) 448,383 441,696
Less: Bank balances and cash W SRAT AR R BLA (90,806) (125,059)
Ner debe B 357,577 316,637
Total equity HE 25 48 7 5,143 69,893
Total capital g A 362,720 386,530
Net debt/total capital ratio BB FEPWEARLE 98.6% 81.9%
Net debt/total equity ratio R R RS A LR 6952.7% 453.0%

The increase in gearing ratio during 2013 resulted primarily from

the increment of borrowings from ultimate holding company for

financing the daily operation and a smaller total equity.

SECEHEZEARARBE LT
B E R W 1k 5 A% R B F
i K DA AF 2 8 DL e i 4 A
B P B



 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. W kEE PR ()
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2P Z Al 5
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TRITEATEIN IR Z I #5 T H
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been G T B AT Z 0T o ARl g AR
defined as follows: REWMTF :
o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HH IR & B AR R G R T
assets or liabilities (level 1); ZHEE(REHE) (F—
;) s
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that . B 5 — 4% B wE B A S A
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that A B A A AR A\
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level WOE B (RPAE A ) B
2); and % (BRI AR B A% ) 38100 45
(58 8% s &
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o KB B SR A B
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level S 35 7 w7 B T B iR (BP
3). AR BB A (B2
&) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TEEINFP=ZA=Z+—HA&R4ELH
are measured at fair value at 31 March: WAV EF R G E KA :
Level 2
B
2013 2012
R =4 TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Assets & E
Available-for-sale financial assets wl gk B B
club debenture o 2 1,128 1,128

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B )R B A B (4)

| (Continued)
3.3 AP Z s (%)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

RERTSEHRAZME TRZA
P 75 #2 7 Hh OR 2 i A
HEAE o W22 5 Pt ~ 2 Sy i - R AL - AT
SEALBK - e 2 7] S B R VT B
IR B A I R - T A R R A% R I
AP REE TR W WY
2 Gy » AT A T 35 A e 3 R

WHEREE TG EE L ME TR
OB TS B P A B 7 85 B © WA 5E
i A8 T3 3 A B R 7 T B T
TP 2 dt - Al A 9 A A4
WA AGEE o MR E THAFEZ R
CEVN VN3 ek RN R
BN —#

i — S = 2 I T OK i A\ B Wl
FE T T B i vk > % TR B
N =Y

Ty Vb 5 B AW AT 0 A A

include: B 5 ¥ 45

e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar o HPTRZWHHRERR S
instruments; T

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length o BERARTT B (B

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for both years.

36 552 Wi N OB e U R
BEBLAMAT ) A BRI T
2 AP -

5B — B B 5 AR T T A 4
A J 1 458
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note

2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)  Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation rates for its property, plant and equipment. The
Group will revise the depreciation rates where useful lives
are different to previous estimation, or it will write off or
write down the value of those assets which are technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.

(b) Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilized, based on all
available evidence. Recognition primarily depends on the
Group’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which tax losses can be utilized. The details

of the assessment are disclosed in Note 27.

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M BRI ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

7 SN RS

A JE FH . SC PR vk 2 i e 7 it SR Z A AR
oo ACEE I E AR R 5 B AR A S R
o T i 4 9 o e T K R 2 I o
AR Z F A e B I B 2 AR 0 3 H 3 R
il wt AN Wl Rtk 2 LA R B (R
JE I 1 L B I AR A B B4 B A S AR R
) 2 B A M A i AR HH R %)
'S

41 K A it

(a) Y- as Rty < 7T/
FEH]

AR A L 3 - B Bk
5 = Al s AT AR % A
38 o il ] FH 47 90 SRS i A
AR ZER - A SR E 18 I T 8
B I8 R A E B Al B
i IRF 2 B A B O 3 A B
Z I SR W AR

(b) Frfi M

PR PR A B T BOSRE > A AR P
AR - H AR AT REE S
JE 4] JRE R 16k A DL AR 8 R B
FABEIE 48 - Bk 40 A i 2 R
B 1) B T s 1B e AR A B TE
B o R DL A 1
TE I B A% € A K 8 A I
JHei 18 2 LA v P B Ak B o T
A8 FEAF T B 27 4 BB o

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgement

(a)

(b)

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

Classification as investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Management of the Group determines whether the
acquired hotel properties qualify as investment properties.
If the property would be classified as investment property,
the property would be measured using fair value model.
In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely independent of the
other assets held by an entity and the level of ancillary
services provided to the tenants. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property
but also to other assets used in the production or supply

process.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or
assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered any
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates,

such as discount rates, future profitability and growth rates.

(%)

4. HOR 9 ah AR K A B

4.2 ER & A B

(@)

(b)

Vg - F -k dcg/EVEEIN ]
VES

A 4 T A B g A D L 2 9
IR R GBS R E
Y3 o M S B B E W
3 > IS B AP (AR
B o AR B TEAR: O e A
W Z B e
AR AR KRR BE B8 3 — [
TR Z A - R
1 P P2 O MR Z R
EEAMMEEEZBER
BAE RS S B > IR LR
A o A3t M AR o T B 2 3L
o, 5 72 A1 Bl

B W

A4 T 55 2 A 0 2 ]
B AR 2 TR R A R
O th BLAA - FU At 2 2 A
B Pk SR BT B L - R
¥ = W T R 8 3L W e ]
SWURE - HEAT WA AR o B S
ol B 4 A B AL 2 AT I
WG AE B 5 o 5%
At ST AL Al R R
B RARBAIRES) B R R
fE o



B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BN TPER
INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment A A R S 0 1) R E PSRN (HD
information based on the regular internal financial information AT 35 ) Wt 2 R R B
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive T 3 T T A 43 S ERE - T % 4 A T
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s BERTIBAT S A [ 2 BB AL
business components and for their review of the performance of B 4343 T VRATE HY e O e A B 5 A 4L
those components. The business components in the internal financial B 43 Z AR B o BT HE R E Z N
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged W E RN 2 AR R O
in (i) property investment and (ii) hotel operations. B 5 P (i) ) B -

2013 2012

—E = —EF -

HK$’000 HK$000

T T#T

Revenue from hotel operations T S WA 3,147 3,941

Rental income LA 3,480 2,495

6,627 6,436

T R AR 81
2012/2013 4E i
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details of

the business segments are as follows:

a)  the hotel operations segment is engaged in hotel rental and food

& beverage business;
b)  the property investment segment is investment in properties and;

c)  the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those
specified in (a) and (b) above and includes that of the corporate

office.

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
(Note 17), property, plant and equipment (Note 15), land use rights
(Note 16) and construction in progress (Note 18). Segment assets
consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
construction in progress, investments and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise borrowings and operating liabilities. Unallocated
assets and liabilities mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the
corporate office, which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any

segment. They include items such as corporate borrowings.

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) resulted by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, finance income,
finance cost, fair value gain on investment properties, release of
available-for-sale financial assets reserve upon disposal, impairment loss

reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets reserve and taxation.

. BB B ERE R (#)

AR T 7 S T R A L R P
2 B0 M i 4> B S ) S A B o ARKAR M 2
S5 oy A5 B — IR SR W S B LA -
P 7 % I B 45 [ A 0 A 3
B 43 H o SR e BEAE T

a) i T ) A O o R R K
B

b) WEBE W AR EYRERE K

o ARAEIEH A LI ()& (b)H
FitJdt DA Bh 2 36785 - 4 455 AR 4 1 3 o
Jig S s o

BEARM X AR EwE (HE17) -9
S Kokl (MEaEls) ~ R
BE(HfRE1e) e T2 (M RE18) 2
WHE iR A R h Y B R
> kO R RE - AR TR R R
WO AR B = 2 5B B 9 i Ak R
Ffi o R ELE A K AR EEREAR
P e = 5 P L e DA 3 £ B e 4 I
L] 23 ¥ Z B S S MR > B4 A SR A K
FIHH -

SHEREGRER S WEEZ R,
18) - 3 4 3 W b e AT B - BB K
A BERA REMEZATVER
A~ B IR AR B AT 3k R BB A
i~ AT Bt A S S A A T 4
Z WA M 15 B B
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment results, depreciation and amortization, and capital

expenditure based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

5. BEBMBrARE R (4)

BEZZ =R 2R -ZH=A
St Bk A i A 2
W SR A~ T T 8 DA A B S

T
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment  operations™*  segments Unallocated  The Group
o
WERE WG RE B AR RARIEH A&EH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
For the year ended BREZZ =4
31 March 2013 SA=Zt-HILAE
Segment revenue: o3 R g
Sales to external customers HINE PR 3,480 3,147 6,627 - 6,627
Segment results ViR ES 4,972 (22,749) (17,777) (3,400) (21,177)
Finance income WA 12 184 196 262 458
Finance costs il A (1,888) (17,790) (19,678) (26,958) (46,636)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBEHT A (K1) 3,096 (40,355) (37,259) (30,096) (67,355)
Taxation BLIH (5,083) (4) (5,087) (89) (5,172)
Loss for the year N (1,987) (40,359) (42,346) (30,181) (72,527)
Other segment information Ao 73 30 R
Depreciation and amortization Ry & & 277 6,646 6,923 625 7,548
Fair value gain on BREMEZ AT HEF
investment properties 4,085 - 4,085 - 4,085
Reversal of provision for J25 50 JRE Wk JE ¢ A
receivable - - - 4,100 4,100
Written back of other payables 5 7 J: fls J £+ 5 JH - 1,427 1,427 - 1,427
Additions to NE
— Property, plant and EN YT
equipment - 53,099 53,099 7 53,106
— Construction in progress - fEHETH 1,899 — 1,899 - 1,899
LR A A BR A W

2012/2013 4E i




84

ed 31 March 2013 # £ = F —=

=VHES L F

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

5. BXRB M ERE R (#)

Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment operations ™ segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
R
MERE W BERE s RamEA AEH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
SR T SRLT SR T
For the year ended BE_ZF-CH8
31 March 2012 ZAZt—HILEE
Segment revenue: o W £
Sales to external customers K8 2,495 3,941 6,436 - 6,436
Segment results Vi Y 21,316 (15,985) 5,331 (9,204) (3,873)
Finance income WMHERA 3 126 129 254 383
Finance costs il AR (3,149) (21,561) (24,710) (23,873) (48,583)
Loss before taxation B B i 4 18,170 (37,420) (19,250) (32,823) (52,073)
Taxation B - (345) (345) - (345)
Profit/(loss) for the year R (ER) 18,170 (37,765) (19,595) (32,823) (52,418)
Other segment information oAt 7y TR B
Depreciation and amortization X Y& i 106 5,452 5,558 1,733 7,291
Fair value gain on BEMEZ A FEEN
investment property 979 - 979 - 979
Gain on disposal of property, HEME KER
plant and equipment M B - 968 968 - 968
Gain on transfer of interest in 0 I 7 T )
properties before completion of HEd 2 A
acquisition - 3,283 3,283 - 3,283
Available-for-sale financial assets LG Y
— release of reserve upon disposal 1 B I A Bk ik 45 - - - 844 844
Impairment loss reclassified from B AL A
available-for-sale financial EERPHZ
assets reserve WG R - - - 323 323
Gain on disposal of HERELEEEZ
assets held for sale B - 5,038 5,038 - 5,038
Gain on disposal of available H 8w ik
for sale financial assets WMHEEZ B 21,892 - 21,892 - 21,892
Additions to RE
- Property, plant and equipment o EN 1Y E ] 3,365 36,666 40,031 106 40,137
— Construction in progress iy R 13,031 - 13,031 - 13,031
Note: Bff 5

Hotel operations segment included hotels which have not been in operations as

at 31 March 2013

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$2.1 million and HK$1.0 million
(FY2012: HK$1.7 million and nil) were derived from Customer A
Customer B in the property investment segment respectively. No other
single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for

both FY2013 and FY2012.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as at 31

March 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

5. BEBMBrARE R (4)

. = =L EVESE

H > ] it 43 0 ) o 2 o0 e 1

Emr
Total for
Property Hotel  reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
L35
MERE  WEEE  2WEE R2EEHE AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#T T# T T
At 31 March 2013 REF—=4
=A=+—H
Segment assets oY 151,713 336,577 488,290 2,329 490,619
Bank balances and cash WATER B4 6,363 61,791 68,154 22,652 90,806
Total assets A 158,076 398,368 556,444 24,981 581,425
Segment liabilities U 29,457 91,293 120,750 7,149 127,899
Amount due to R A5F 5 4 2 % 2 ) R
ultimate holding company 19,791 146,128 165,919 282,464 448,383
Total liabilities AR 49,248 237,421 286,669 289,613 576,282
At 31 March 2012 /A S
=H=+—H
Segment assets o R 111,636 369,616 481,252 3,734 484,986
Bank balances and cash RATH B kBl & 1,776 60,855 62,631 62,428 125,059
Total assets AR 113,412 430,471 543,883 66,162 610,045
Segment liabilities v S 26,147 65,470 91,617 7,425 99,042
Other loans o Bk - 35,470 35,470 - 35,470
Amount due to ultimate JHE A5F 5 4 2 e 2 ) i R
holding company 7,917 142,172 150,089 255,551 405,640
Total liabilities AR 34,064 243,112 277,176 262,976 540,152
B4 A B ]

2012/2013 4E i
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5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5.
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 and non-current assets as at 31 March
2013 and 2012 based on geographical area are as follows:

BREB SR ()

A 4 T A T vp i N R (T
B ) R o AR EEKE R =4
B F - DHEZ A=A B
1) 7 2 WA DA R R SRR
—TAEZEH = H i R 4 2 IR
BEENT

2013 2012
TR B
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR T
Revenue L&

Hong Kong P _ _
PRC o g 6,627 6,436
6,627 6,436

Non-current assets I B E
Hong Kong RS 1,503 1,008
PRC 5 396,804 462,569
398,307 463,577

Revenue is categorized based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorized based on

where the assets are located.

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

OTHER GAIN 6. HAth &
2013 2012
R = E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment i 8 4 3 ~ #E 45 I 3% M5 Z LR - 968
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale HERENEEEZER - 5,038
Gain on transfer of interest in properties W B 56 R T MR A B A 2
before completion of acquisition el - 3,283
Other gain b 2 ) 192 359
Available-for-sale financial assets Wt R E
— release of reserve upon disposal — B I A G A - 844
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale H B T 40 B P S R R
financial assets - 21,892
Written back of other payables % 1] HE A I A K T 1,427 -
1,619 32,384
STAFF COSTS 7. & B RA
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TR AR B 2 IR B A - B EE A
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)). WERZE (Mik14a)) -
2013 2012
R =4 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR T
Directors’ fees M A 862 900
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits it 4 B b e 391 08 B AR A 9,452 11,012
(Reversal)/Provision of unutilized annual leave R B AR AR (1l 388 ) A (15) 29
Pension costs — MPF (note i) B AR & B AR — i v A B 4
(FFEL) 92 96
Social security costs (note ii) A PR AR (B L) 1,469 1,446
Overprovision of bonus A AL - (5,450)
11,860 8,033
LR A A BR A W

2012/2013 4E i
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7. STAFF COSTS (Continued) | .ﬁ(ﬁﬁ)

Notes: B2

i There were no forfeited contributions during the years ended 31 March it
2013 and 2012.

ii All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC excluding ii
Hong Kong who are PRC citizens participate in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare
benefits, which are organized and administrated by the government
authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes
on a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and social

welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as incurred.

BREZZ-=ZHERZF-ZFEER
Zob HOR AR 2 Bl o

An T Z B (RS ) B 2 7
A By R AR 3 2 B
AT 2 A E AL DR e o S
FH RS R B o T T L > A AR IR AR
S~ R Al A R o 45 RORH B AL
ACHE B A AR SRR S 2 H T
Vo 1 55 T A 4 0 8 40 o Bk (e
WA AT BRI o p it B AR
JRE A I 32 48 o

8. OPERATING LOSS 8. BEEE

2013 2012
—E = —E -
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tise
Operating loss is arrived at after charging/ HESY-1 F-Ligasil " d
(crediting): (FFA) =
Legal and professional fee BHRHEER 479 8,575
Consultancy fee B R 475 324
Depreciation and amortization T8 I 4 7,548 7,291
Impairment loss reclassified from )t Y I A
available-for-sale financial assets reserve B4 B 2 I E R 1R - 323
Auditors’ remuneration 7% 5 i T 4 833 765
Net exchange gain e 5, 781 R 35+ A (1,353) (751)
Reversal of provision for receivable 8 I R WSk T AR (4,100) -
Office rental b ANE ¥ 1,863 2,968
Direct costs attributable to operating lease A 0 B AN T B R AR 20 -

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

9. FINANCE INCOME 9. MBWA
2013 2012
TR =R TR T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T T o0
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 458 383
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. il & A
2013 2012
—E =R 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#c FusoT
Interest on finance leases Tl AL A B 15 48
Other interest and finance costs on amounts ZA LA N B A R I
wholly repayable within five years Z AR B B i B AR 46,621 48,535
46,636 48,583

11. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (FY 2012: Nil) has been made
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year. Taxation
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation in the PRC.

The provision of deferred income tax on fair value gain on appreciated
investment properties recovered through sale, has been made according

to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and

regulations.

11. BiJAE

FH A 45 0 7 A 4 €SI 4 MR R v A >
FECTP 4 A S 8 R A 9 R A5 BEARE L 8t
(2 B - ) o B A

ZBUIH TR 5 v I A R Al B 2 AR

R R i A it 5

'fﬁo

2 B W ] DR E S AP
78] 2 A0 S o 4 L 488 A0 7 AL 9 A B
I A5 85 ;1) B 3 B P o 2 LA A A

LR A A BR A W
2012/2013 4E i




11. TAXATION (Continued) ' 1L Jﬁ (%)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of A EmMBERNC B BIES M
comprehensive income represents: i
2013 2012
TR =R TR TR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T
Current tax — PRC B 1 A — 7 4
Deferred taxation 1% JE A IH 5,165 341
5,172 345
The tax on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the theoretical A 45 18 [ 6 1 4R 2 B 0B B 4% R A
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable B0 ] S Z IREF ¥ B R A Z B
to the results of the consolidated companies as follows: BB Z BT :
2013 2012
R =4 B
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tilb Tilse
Loss before income taxation sk Bir 45 B8 s 48 (67,355) (52,073)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates Y508 s 4 W E T R A 2
applicable to profits in B AR T 2 Bl
the respective jurisdictions (8,691) (16,438)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ] A B Sz 2 o IE B2 7,722 8,881
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue A B WL 25 = I s 28 (271) (676)
Deferred tax assets not recognised [ i T 5,358 8,322
Provision for land appreciation tax e 3 54 B R A 1,406 341
Current income tax effect on land appreciation tax M 34 {H B8 Z B 35 iy 75 i 5 %8¢ (352) (85)
Tax charge MiITE I 5,172 345

0 o reporcorzzos . . . SRR
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12.

13.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of a loss of HK$48.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 (year
ended 31 March 2012: loss of HK$42.8 million).

to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI BRI ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ — € —=4#=H =+—H IFF/F

12, A% 2 5 BE i3 5 A\ RE A
A i 1R

BRER=H=ZH=T—HILEE
T AR 2 i) B 2 R 3 P L 2 AR A ) R
Fe A N AN 4 9 06 48 4% 5 $5148,100,000
Wit (BRE-R—-HE=A=Z1—HIL
A ¢ 542,800,000 08 ) ©

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER 13. A 2 ) BE % 5 A N AL
ORDINARY SHARE FOR LOSS FOR A IR 2 B B A
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HE A B W s 4R
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Basic loss per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the loss () B R AR s 18 % DL AR I AR
attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the A RER A NEAAEHEDLC
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the ATV 0 I o B - 35 R AR
years.
2013 2012
et I et
Loss for the year attributable to equity AR wRE 25 R A N R AL
holders of the Company, HK$’000 FEREE T#L (70,799) (52,418)
Weighted average number of T3 A7 9 78 Bt = i HE ~F- 3% 8
ordinary shares in issue 1,529,600,200 1,529,600,200
Basic loss per ordinary share, HK cents B Ji 0 9 e HE A s 18 > WAl (4.63) (3.43)

(b) The calculation of diluted loss per ordinary share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which
is the same for calculating basic loss per ordinary share above, as
the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from share options during the two years ended 31 March

2013 and 2012.

The preferred shares issued to the non-controlling interest for
the subsidiary have no potentially dilutive effect to the ordinary
shares of the Company for financial year ended 31 March 2013
and 2012.

(b)

B e ¥ 9 M A 4R = W AR TS DL
A2 T RE 25 5 AN BEAG AR s 1
Be b OB I 9 B Rk A M 4R
8 FH 2 A I 3 28 T - 3
K AAARAFRKEZR =
ERRB-THEZA=Z1T—HIL
T 45 B A TR T B A AT AT
Y A A B

REEZR-ZHE R R TFE
H=A+— H kBB BE > 1 Fif e 2
R 4 B B i B AT 2 SR R R
O T 9 J SIF 48 Y A R

B4 A FRA 7
2012/2013 4E )t
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the

year ended 31 March 2013 were as follows:

14. 3 3 B 2% P I

(a) EFME
BEE-=#F£="H=1+—HIL%E
FEOM M S EF AW T -

Employer’s
Employee  contribution
Other  share option  to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries benefits** benefits scheme Total
1 3: 1)
TEERIHE Bk atd
HRMEH ik H Hopto w5 A+ LU (PS¢ B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt T T T T T
Executive directors Wi ER
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) FEMEE ) - - - - - -
M. XIAO Huan Wei H e - 1,791 527 - 15 2,333
Independent BT ER
non-executive directors
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.p. ! 3 ffy 6 A ok 4 300 - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, .2, (ii) 2B /R 8 = A A (i) 150 - - - - 150
Mr. David YU Hon To AR 300 - - - - 300
Mt. SOO Ying Poo (ii) B B 2 2 (i) 112 - - - - 112
862 1,791 527 - 15 3,195
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the
year ended 31 March 2012 were as follows:

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 1 WA 25 R M ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

&

14. % 3 Jo w5 #1584
(%)

(a)

EHEME (4)
WEF—UESAS T HIE
Ve LA RN 4% 3 S 2 A T

Employer’s
Employee  contribution
Other  share option to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries benefits* benefits scheme Total
f& 321
TEEREBCE B Rt
HRLS i e JeAbwE R LTI (i i sk
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl T T T Tl T
Executive directors WiTES
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) FEMEE®) - - - - - -
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H g - 1,127 809 - 12 1,948
Independent BT E R
non-executive directors
M. Alan Howard SMITH, 1.2 5 i ffi 58 4 KP4+ 300 - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng Fei, ].P. ZEME M+ K-F40+: 300 - - - - 300
Mt. David YU Hon To iR 33 300 - - - - 300
900 1,127 809 - 12 2,848

**  Other benefits include housing allowance.

(i)  An Executive Director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived his
emolument for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

(i) Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, J.P., ceased to be the Company’s
independent non-executive director since 28 September 2012.

(iii) Mr. SOO Ying Pooi was appointed on 16 November 2012.

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

o AR R L B R I o

() WATEEEERBEERRLRE
R -EERCFR-EZENR
=+ —H IR 4E R Z 4 o

(i)  ZEMERME L AREA LR =%
EILT = N H RS F 2 A A ]
W PATE S

(iii) WRMEW S A R A A
TABEERAL

A B PUAT S T A A W TR B
FTBON B o L - B 5 A P o i
FAT WO AT BN B Z H o

BEZF-=ZFR -SR-S
A=A HAR AR BE > A 7] 3 4 )
AT Aoy 2 2% S A Ao T 5 - A 2 2
e 55 I A 55 [ S A A 4R T g

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

e

14, T T 5 % PR )

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (%)

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b) hfamEH AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AREEREMLAREHALE
Group for the year comprise 1 director and 4 employees (year B AEFRNUALARE (REZ
ended 31 March 2012: 1 directors and 4 employees). The details F-HE=ZH=ZF+—HILEE:
of the emoluments payable to the 4 employees (year ended 31 —HERERLREE) o &N A
March 2012: 4 employees) during the year are presented below: FMAREE (BREZR—-_4=]
Z=h—HIREE:UAER) Z W
SRR
2013 2012
R = TR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tilbse F it
Salaries and other short-term Wt 4 B I Aib e 391 0 L A A
employee benefits 1,866 2,093
Pension costs — defined contribution plan IBAR G B AR — 52 B GT ) 15 12
1,881 2,105
Number of individuals
N
2013 2012
—E = TR
Emoluments band T 4 i 1
HKS$1 — HK$500,000 198 78 — 500,000 70 3 1
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7E — 1,000,000 457G 1 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND -EQUIPMENT

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) &

ok 1 A 265 A P

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

15. Y036 ~ B4 e wefli

(%)

The Group a. AKLH
Office
equipment Computer
Hotel Furniture and and related Motor
properties  and fixtures machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
WA R IR
WENE HRRER BB 35 B P ki
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T T T T T#L
Cost
Ac 1 April 2012 “HENH—H 244,442 13,406 6,349 6,140 4,198 274,535
Additions w" 53,058 20 - 28 - 53,106
Reclassified as investment i%fﬁ‘ ﬁﬁ BEm¥
properties (Note) (9,831) - - - - (9,831)
Reclassified as assets held for iﬁﬁﬁﬁb FEl &g E
sale (Note 22) (Hfik22) (86,659 (4,977) - - - (91,636)
Exchange difference E 30, 2% % 899 46 22 20 4 991
At 31 March 2013 PREE-ZEZAZF0 201,909 8,495 6,371 6,188 4,202 227,165
Accumulated depreciation At
Ac 1 April 2012 BB THENA—A 7,350 10,794 4,808 2,159 3,207 28,318
Charge for the year A X 1,526 980 1,185 673 617 4,981
Reclassified as investment iﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%%
properties (Note) (195) - - - - (195)
Reclassified as assets held for E%’fﬁﬁ% el &g
sale (Note 22) (fiF5E22) (6,164) (3,728) - - - (9,892)
Exchange difference I . 7% A 35 41 25 9 1 111
At 31 March 2013 REZF-=4
ZH=Z+—H 2,552 8,087 6,018 2,841 3,825 23,323
Net book value iR T 0
At 31 March 2013 REZF—-ZHZA=+—H 199357 408 353 3,347 377 203,842
Cost WA
Ac 1 April 2011 REF——HNH—H 248,836 17,005 6,137 5,958 4,345 282,281
Additions i 40,031 87 - 19 - 40,137
Disposals ik (7,505) (3,982) (11) (38) (182) (11,718)
Reclassified as investment EHBARENE
properties (Note) (H3E) (46,635) - - - - (46,635)
Exchange difference I 38 7% A 9,715 296 223 201 35 10,470
At 31 March 2012 /e S
=A=+—H 244,442 13,406 6,349 6,140 4,198 274,535
Accumulated depreciation Rt
At 1 April 2011 R_F——HENH—H 5,912 13,593 3,470 1,465 2,539 26,979
Charge for the year R X 1,447 1,006 1,154 664 802 5,073
Disposals & (147) (3,982) (11) (4) (157) (4,301)
Exchange difference [t 5t 2% % 138 177 195 34 23 567
At 31 March 2012 REF-ZHEZA=ZT—H 7,350 10,794 4,808 2,159 3,207 28,318
Net book value i i £
At 31 March 2012 RZZF-ZHZAZ+—H 237,092 2,612 1,541 3,981 991 246,217
Note: P 5T -
During the year ended 31 March 2013, property, plant and equipment MNEE-F-Z4FE=ZHA=+—HILEE

with net book value of HK$9,636,000 (FY2012: HK$46,635,000) were
reclassified as investment properties with a fair value gain before taxes
of HK$1,000,000 (FY2012: HK$2,536,000) being credited to the other

comprehensive Income.

H T - 1E %5 9,636,0009 T ( & — AR B
B4R B 2 46,635,000 00 ) 2 W) % - MR Tk
5 O F W o JE R BB s BR BT A R

Z 1,000,000 70 ( =& —

AR B B

2,536,000% 76 ) T A LAl 2 i WA -

B4 A FRA 7
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15. PROPERY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN 15. 40 3 ~ M R Bt Ml (480)

(Continued)
b. The Company b. AZ ]
Furniture Computer
and Office and related
fixtures equipment equipment Total
73192 WA= B R
B i s B 3% s k]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T RN SR SR
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 /I SR S
[MH—H 1,078 78 522 1,678
Disposal e - - - -
At 31 March 2013 HoR—EAE
ZHA=+—H R N 8 52 1,678
Accumulated depreciation Ratii s
At 1 April 2012 i SRS
MH—H 1,078 78 510 1,666
Disposal 8 - - - -
Charge for the year HENB S - - 12 12
At 31 March 2013 HoR—EA
ZA=+—H o Lozg 78 522 1,678
Net book value G i ¥ A
At 31 March 2013 R_-F—Z4
=A=Z+—H - - _ _
Cost BA
At 1 April 2011 I a2
[WH—H 5,062 87 526 5,675
Disposal ik (3,984) 9 (4) (3,997)
At 31 March 2012 WRoF—T4
ZA=Z+—H Lo78 78 522 1,678
Accumulated depreciation Bt g
At 1 April 2011 /IR St
J9H—H 5,062 87 499 5,648
Disposal ik (3,984) ) 4) (3,997)
Charge for the year 4 9 R 32 - - 15 15
At 31 March 2012 R
=H=+—H R N 8 510 1,666
Net book value I i 3 £
At 31 March 2012 PR
ZA=+—H - - 12 12

9 g reporcorzzos . . R SRS
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16.LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values, are analysed as

 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

16. £ 3b fiE F

ACER [ A 0 PR B A (R AT RS
B A BRI S LR T ) AT T

follows:
2013 2012
TR = R T
HK$’000 HK$’000
il Tt
Cost: JRA
At 1 April WHA—H 73,970 87,979
Disposals e - (8,899)
Reclassification W4 B
Assets held for sale (Note 22) Fefe B g A (Hak22) (6,909) -
Investment properties (Note) BE Y (FiFaE) (8,057) (8,547)
Exchange difference [ 5, 2 % 88 3,437
At 31 March R=A=+—H 59,002 ¢ 73,970
Accumulated amortization: PR 3R
At 1 April WHH—H 7,061 5,217
Charge for the year NP 2,567 2,218
Disposals e - (600)
Reclassification HHi 8
Assets held for sale (Note 22) Fefe & A (Mhik22) (998) -
Investment properties (Note) &Y (M) (890) —
Exchange difference [ 5t 2% 4 30 226
At 31 March W=H=+—H 7770 7,061
Net book value [IITRE
At 31 March W=H=+—H 51,322 66,909
Note: B <
During the year ended 31 March 2013, land use right with net book value RRE-R =242 —HIREE

of HK$7,167,000 (FY2012: HK$8,547,000) was reclassified as investment
properties with a fair value gain before taxes of HK$12,172,000 (FY2012:
HK$17,605,000) being credited to the other comprehensive income.

W T E %57,167,0009 76 ( = F — AR
WA BE 2 8,547,000 06 ) Z L HLfE FHE ©
OB Uk B W 2 BRBL AT A F 1 &

12,172,000% 76 ( =% — 48 W BU4F % -
17,605,000% 76 ) T 51 A Ath 2 1 WL A ©

LR A A BR A W
2012/2013 4E i
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16.LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued)

o

6. 1 i 1 T B ()

The Group’s interests in land use rights at their net book value are AHE s 1 I 2 2R (H LRI
analyzed as follows: BFEFH) ST E -
2013 2012
=4 TR
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T Tt
Outside Hong Kong, held on: WA - LT R h
Leases of less than 10 years AR 104 Z L& - -
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 10E504F Z il 15 51,322 66,909
51,322 66,909
17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. & W
2013 2012
ZE =4 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
At 1 April BMH—H 93,758 -
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment EH BB AR R 10,636 49,171
Reclassified from land use rights T4 B A A R 19,339 26,152
Reclassified from construction W AR TR
in progress (Note 18) (KFE18) - 17,446
Increase in value credited to profit and loss TEH 28 5 A Z K EH 4,085 979
Exchange difference [ 58 25 587 10
At 31 March W=A=1+—H 128,405 93,758
The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to earn A EMR RS E A D 42

Yo SEMERR T PR A A P SR G & -

rentals are measured using the fair value model.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED

sam Repor o205 . .. R, SRS
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. &M ()

(a) Valuation basis

The fair value of the investment properties in the PRC at 31
March 2013 has been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out
on the date by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group (FY2012: same).
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar property at similar location.

) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

(a)

il {8 5 ¥t

RE-F-=Z24ZA=Z1—H 1l
BE W 3R Z A AR DK A AT R AE
T 0 A R 2 ] (LA 35 A B B )
S B SR AN A ) Y % H
AT ZAG AR IR (% — 24
S B4R E  EI ) o Al JS 2 %

B R G 2 T SRR
fiE o
(b) Leasing arrangements (b) &L
Investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term MBEHNE&SMEM PR Z &
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. B A XA A4
18. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 18. fE it L%
Group
A A
2013 2012
B e A 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
T AR
At 1 April BMH—H 4,468 8,549
Additions wE 1,899 13,031
Transfer to investment properties (Note 17) B EREYE (HEk17) - (17,440)
Exchange difference [ 38 25 - 334
At 31 March W=H=+—H 6,367 4,468

B O Ul
2012/2013 4E i
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) " 1
ik & 2 ) B i

Note:

Pursuant to a written shareholders agreement with the Preferred Shareholder
dated 1 November 2009, “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, converted all the Preferred Shares
into 7,409 Common Shares at a ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common
Share to the Preferred Shareholder of UIHHL on 1 November 2012. As a result
of the full conversion, the shareholding interest of the Company in UIHHL was
decreased from 100% to 74.1%.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The carrying values of the amounts due from/to
subsidiaries approximate their fair value. The amounts due from subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 and the amounts due to subsidiaries as at 31
March 2013 and 2012 were all denominated in HK dollars.

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
A2
2013 2012
R =R TR
HK$’000 HK$ 000

T T o0
Non-current assets: I B
Unlisted shares at cost I LT AR > 3% A E 330,000 330,000
Current assets: Ui Wh B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE R BR i 2 W) 2 kI 193,374 188,267
Less: provision for impairment loss T = VA e R A (136,580) (136,580)

56,794 51,687
Current liabilities: b R=R
Amounts due to subsidiaries A B} S 2 W) 2 R IE 23,904 13,771

it i+

MR BRI F A A FTET L B —FF N
Ht— A B ZHER AR R
Bt A ARAE Z A W A F R 8
FAREEIA R A (TR 1%—
e 8 s I 0k — B 5 e = Bl - R LA
JB R A NS BT AT B e B R Ry 7,409 8 35
JBe o RS T AT 2 SOt > WOAR 2 BRMR 1
AR Z IR HE H1009% M % 74.19% ©

TRE W WG AT O J ) 2 3R BT SRR A ~ 4R
B ¥ B SRR o MEWL W) Y JBS 2 v 22 ik
Z MR TR S A P AR A - R R — SR
FoHEZAZT A ZBEREE AR Z
RIEURR ZZE - =ZF R 24 =R
b B Z MR F G 2 B 2 KH 3 Do R
f o




| &

h

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2013.

Principal subsidiaries are those subsidiaries that are active and have

commenced operations.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Aok 1 WA 25 R M ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

19. Fft J& 2 = HE 45 (%)
PUFRAR -2 SHEZA=F A
E3 1) PSSR RES {07 VR
e 5 B CL D 0 2 i

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
i E AR, B CE AT A/ R 7 A
41 Btk e B ER B/ VS E3 0] BB 7 2 A i i e
2013 2012
ZE-ZE SR
Arrow Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 *100% *100% *
BREEARAR Hil WP VB R 1T 2 B R A
Chong Qing “U” Inns & Hotels PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Limited * liability company in PRC US$875,000
T I8 R 1 LA B R B A R TE B 4 ik M A¢875,0005 76
Daily Right Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
HIEA R A [ TR AL B B R TR 2 1 R TE2Z
Lyl
Grand Boom Investments Limited Samoa Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
o e B8 AT A 233 TERWRI N R A 15670 2 05 0 M Je iy
Great Partner International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100%*
in Hong Kong
B PR A B A R i TER RN ST A 130 2 3 2 M M
Great Partner Investment PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited liability company consulting in PRC HK$12,000,000
M () A A PE AREMLAF Te R AR AT 5 R Ak 412,000,003 76
o T
Proper Class Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 74.1% 100%
in Hong Kong
B AR Hil TERWRA R R R 10 2 0 M
Rich Field International Limited Samoa Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% 100%
in Hong Kong
IR B B R AR e e i TEF A B 2B R T B 2 15662
Lyl
Success Key Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 *100% *100%
in Hong Kong
FRAE P AT A R KRB LR TERERERN R 215600 2 B 4
Sun Shell Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 74.1% 100%*
in Hong Kong
B EATRA R wik TERWRI N USR03 2 M M

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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Place of incorporation/
establishment and

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal activities

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

19. Pt & 2> v HE #5 (45)

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
FEI L,/ CE AT A/ RE I 7 A
Hi Bt e SR ER-F2 YT £ B0 7 2 A i i
2013 2012
SR “E-CE
Superior Fortune Investments Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 74.1% 100%*
in Hong Kong
HEREAMRAF i TERWRE N R 10 2 0 M M
“U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 10,000 common shares of *74.1% *100% of
in Hong Kong USS$1 each (2012: 7,410 Common shares
common shares of US$1 each and
2,590 Series A preferred shares of
USS$1 each)
R 19 R T MR AT PR 24 e W I LT B MRS 10,0008 B i 519682 *100%
BEBRS (T4 80 % e 1
7 4TOBC BRI L2 176 2
TR B2, 590
R 2156002
ARFIERR)
“U” Inns & Hotels Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of HK$1 74.1% 100%*
Investment Limited in Hong Kong
T B R I A7 I ) Hil TERWRA R R R 10 2 0 MM
“U” Inns & Hotels Management Co., PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Ltd. Linzhi Tibet * liability company US$2,200,000
TR AR H R O 4 AT R A EFa ik 422,200,00035 78
HIA
“U” Inns & Hotels (Bu Er Jin) PRC, limited Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Limited * liability company US$1,390,000
T B B 0 7 B (A AR AR A e B 4 B k¥ 41,390,000 78
HIRAF
“U” Inns & Hotels (Chengdu) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Investment Management Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
RIS (B ) #%  a B A R A A 7 F 4 4 4 2 ikt 3 422,000,00038 78
HRA T ok i i
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ding Xi) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Limited * liability company U$$3,000,000
RI % AE (A2 75 ) 36 1 5 2 AR A LE= ik fit ¥ 7%3,000,0005 78
HIRAT
“U” Inns & Hotels (Dun Huang) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Limited * liability company US$3,700,000
TRIh % B (S ) 8 % 4 B A R A A EEEa kI A 3,700,000% 76
HA T
“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Shi) Limited * liability company in PRC HK$48,630,000
TR % B (IF B 1Ly 1) AR A e B 4 B AL A248,630,000% 72
HIRAH
VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities

Aok 1 WA 25 R M ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Pt & 2> v HE £ (#45)

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
FE L/ B CE AT A/ RE I 7 A
Hi Ttk AT R ER S YT £3H R A6 % 2 Rk i i
2013 2012
CE-SE ZEDA
“U” Inns & Hotels (Long Nan) PRC, limited Inactive Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company RMB18,500,000
TR I % B (R ) 8 )% 1 At P AR A WRER R ARE18,500,00070
HIRAT
“U” Inns & Hotels (Ninghai) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Led. ® liability company in PRC US$5,705,000
TRI %4 (5236 ) i 1% 45 2 B A R LA e B 4 kB A5,705,0005 76
FIRAT
U Inns & Hotel (Sichuan) Limited * PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
liability company in PRC US$10,500,000
TR Z BRI (P9I A AT - AT R AE A T B 4 kM A%10,500,00058 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tong Hua) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Ltd * liability company in PRC US$2,249,600
R %R (AL ) )% % 2 - AT R AE A TE T 0 e ik {7k 2,249,600 7
ARA T
“U” Inns (Wafangdian) Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Limited * liability company in PRC HK$28,000,000
TR ERE (LR I ) )5 4 21 AR A T F B O e Ak ¥ 428,000,003 7
FIR AT
“U” Inns & Hotels (Tu Lu Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Limited * liability company in PRC US$1,770,000
T B R I 7 (S R ) o A R AR A e v I I e Ak A 1,770,000% 76
FIRAT
“U” Inns & Hotels (WeiFang) Limited * PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
liability company in PRC US$4,550,000
TR0 Z BRI (B30 ) A A 7 AR A R Te T B O e ik T A4,550,0005 76
“U” Inns & Hotels (Wu Han) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$956,980
TR % B () 05 5 3 P AT R A T 1 O e k1 A956,980% 70
HRA T
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xi An) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC US$10,100,000
TRIZ R (P55 ) )5 4 3 P AR T v U O e ¥ k% 7% 10,100,00058 76
HIRA T
“U” Inns & Hotels (Xiang Fan) PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Limited * liability company in PRC US$$2,949,000
TR A% R (E5%) i 5 8 3 o AT R AE A TE v I I e 7k % 42,949,0003 78
AIRAT
AT LA

2012/2013 4E i
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Place of incorporation/
establishment and

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal activities

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

19. Pt 2> v HE #5 (45)

Name kind of legal entity and place of operations and debt securities Interest held
FEI L,/ CE AT A/ RE I 7 A
1 Bt e SR ER-F2 YT £ B0 7 2 A i i
2013 2012
SRR ZR-TF
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel PRC, limited Hotel investment Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company in PRC HK$25,650,000
R %48 (B 10) 00 5 A B A R A A T B 4 Ak ¥ 425,650,003 7
HIA T
“U” Inns Hospitality Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
(Shanghai) Co. Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$1,166,030
LG (LAl ) AR A PEHREMLAF Te R AT 8 R A A,166,0303 78
o o
“U” Inns & Hotels Information PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
Technology (Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$755,000
Wi % g (L) 5 B Hehe B AR EAEA R Te AT B R ik A755,0005 76
HIRATH il M
“U” Inns Investment Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
TRib% R (L) &g B A R A T R BB A B R kI 7 2,000,000% 76
HIRAT ok i i
VXL Corporate Advisory (Shanghai) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$140,000
g SR PR (L3 B HREMLAR 7 v B 4 A il i Ak 140,0003 7
HIRAT e ik o
VXL Management Services Limited* Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of HK$1 *100% *100% *
in Hong Kong
O R R A i TE A AL A S0 1B T 1B 25 138 7 2
B
VXL Nominees Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each *100% *100%*
in Hong Kong
wi TER B T M 2 T 1 ¥R
T B Ay
Yanlian International Petroleum British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100%
Limited in Hong Kong
o B AT PR A R e ol VLB By TR B G R 1B R 251560 2
BB R

Shares held directly by the Company. * JBe 4y B AR A T BB R ©

S R T I o M TR S
Hrp A B -

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of

their Chinese names.

BREZR-ZHFEEZA=STHIRFE
FiF g 2> 51 R R AR (7 98 ) 7l i 5 5
ARA R -

’ Subsidiaries audited by Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited for the year ’
ended 31 March 2012.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
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“onsolidated Financial Statements (Continue:

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

Aok 1 W 25 R M e (7

4 . -
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. "] 4t 1 B B E A
ASSETS
Group
A& 4
2013 2012
=k B4
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tt
At 1 April PHA—H 1,128 1,128
At 31 March MRE=H=+—H 1,128 1,128
Note: i -

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures of golf clubs

which are denominated in RMB.

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as lictle
as possible on entity specific estimates. The available-for-sale financial

assets are not exposed to credit risk.

YR B A A R BRIk Bl
B2z - U Rt -

TR S A A B BR A B
TR E o % S5 A E D5 2 sl SR T B A
Z 5 R () - i B A KR
TEHE Z S Al o Tt Hh B B Sl
7R 2 A7 B

T T T R ey 105
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21.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

21. MWk ~ P K H Bt 4

DEPOSITS
Group Company
AL M A 4]
2013 2012 2013 2012
SER-EgE DR T DR -SE DR -TE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
T T T#u TH#T
Non-current JE P )
Deposits for acquisition of WA S i A 2 2
hotel properties 4 7,243 51,097 - -
M 0 o o
Current HIEY]
Trade receivables B 5 ME R Ak 107 42 - -
Other receivables At B AR T 2,851 19,522 7 6
Other prepayments and deposits Al FE A 3K e
e 1,453 1,845 195 309
4,411 21,409 202 315
11,654 72,506 202 315

A significant part of the Group’s sales are by credit cards or against
payment of deposits. The trade receivables are with general credit term
of 0 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2013, the trade receivables aged within
two months and are not past due (FY2012: within one month and
are not past due). Management is of the opinion that no impairment
provision is made to other receivables as there is no indication of

impairment noted for the year.

The carrying amounts of receivables, prepayments and deposits
approximate their fair value due to the fact that the effect of
discounting is not material. As at 31 March 2013, none of the
receivables, prepayments and deposits was impaired (FY2012:
HK$4,100,000 of the other receivables was impaired and fully
provided for).

AR I 2 4 A WU 4 DLAE R A
AR A 2 K8 o B 5 BEWUR K
—HAMEE RN PFEETH R
Fo=HZA=1H o B BERIER
MR B A2 W I8 A 9 Bl AR Y (=% —
A S BOAE E IR AE — 8 T A R R I
J1) o 5 B R R A4 JIE N S8 % BUAT: i
TR B 5% - 30 S S 0 L A AR JEL A
TR A -

E R B B 5 B N A T K > M R I
T AT ik JE B ¥ 4 2 R v B 3L A P
WE - R _F—Z4F£=ZHA=1+—H %
0 J WS T > TS AR T T 4t B
(20— AR AR B = il R o sk 0
H14,100,000%5 JC T Uk A B 2 B4 ) ©



to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

f A A IR AR W R ()

f‘ For the year ended 31 March 2013 #6 £ ~F —=4F=H =+—H ILFE
21.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 21. FEW Bk JE ~ T4 X JH R 17 &

DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables, prepayments and

(#1)
A B 2 K~ BRI B 2

deposits are denominated in the following currencies: M {F DL T 4 £ W A
Group Company
AL A2
2013 2012 2013 2012
CRSAE SRR SRS SR
HKS$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
T Tww Tl TR
Hong Kong dollars #IT 837 13,331 202 315
Renminbi AR 10,817 59,175 - -
11,654 72,506 202 315
22.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND 22. FE B E R
LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR ffe i B e

SALE

On 24 October 2012 and 8 February 2013, the U Inns & Hotels
Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into agreements with two independent third
parties to dispose the equity interest in “U” Inns (Wafangdian) Hotel
Management Co., Limited and “U” Inns & Hotels (Tu Lu Fan)
Management Co., Limited for a consideration of RMB38.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$47.2 million) and RMB16.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$19.9 million) respectively, with
approximately HK$9.8 million of the total consideration was not
received as at 31 March 2013. The said subsidiaries will realize, on
completion, a gain on the disposals of approximately HK$3.2 million

and HK$3.8 million respectively.

Further, equity interest in “U” Inns Hotels (Xiang Fan) Management
Co., Limited and “U” Inns & Hotels (Bu Er Jin) Management Co.,
Limited have been presented as assets and liabilities classified as
held for sale following the approval of the Group’s management in
March 2013. Equity transfer agreements were entered subsequently as

disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The completion dates for the above transactions are expected by March

2014.

PR THZTNE AR —=
EZHINH » AR w2 2 6 F R A W)
P 1 2 AR 5 A PR 2 ) SR 4 8 o AR
=R - BRI ERE (REE)
5 P PR A B R I & AR S A
PE(nE T ) A R T A R ReRE - AR
15 43 B 25 N\ R ¥38,100,00070 ( FH & i
#147,200,000% 78 ) K& A R #16,200,000
JG (HHE R #119,900,0008 8 ) © AR
W1 19,800,000 R —F—=4=H
Zb—H AR WO o A 58 BRE o b At B
Ji A W £ B B B4 B £13,200,000%
J6 % 3,800,000 JC °

BeAb s R R S S A R E A B
g 4% - R B R (AR B ) 4 BE
A PR T AR B BT A B (A A
R ) A PR A T Z JBEHE O 2 5 2 o WA 5
A th 45 3 B AR o T M O B e D AR
O % £ B 20 S P i 33 BT 43 T o

bl AR By R & DU AE = H R e
B o

R T, .
2012/2013 4E )t
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© 22.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND 22, F¢AE ’%L & R o A

LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 548 A AU (4D
SALE (Continued)
The carry amounts of the hotel properties and land use right were T I 3 T A st A PR 2 M i AR
reclassified as “Assets held for sale” in accordance with HKFRS 5 A v T 5 i R A S R [FR R B 2
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations”. JERB) A K OB S E
Bk TrifE Bl o
2013
ZE =
HK$’000
T
Assets HE
At 1 April P A—H -
Reclassified from property, TR BUE P 3 B R (FFsE15a)
plant and equipment (note 15a) 81,744
Reclassified from land use right (note 16) EHi A b I AE (Ftskie) 5,911
Exchange difference [ 56 2% 3 246
At 31 March R=EA=Z+—H 87,901
Liabilities A
At 1 April WA —H -
Reclassified from payables and accruals T4 A A AR E R s E A 749
At 31 March BEA=+—H 749
The operating result of the above hotels for the year ended 31 March BREFR-=ZHZA=Z1T—HILHSE -
2013 were included under “hotel operations” segment as disclosed in bt R 2 R0 A A SR I B R
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. Wi 55 T 43 B 2 T304 0 7 J | 43 0 o
23.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BRAT K5 8% K Bl &
Group Company
AL M A4l
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR g DR T DER S R TE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T#o0 T T#T

Bank balances and cash on hand SATAE R R F B4 90,806 125,059 148 271

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
Annual Report 2012/2013
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) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

23.BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued) 23. R 1745 B Bl A (#)

The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRAT &L R R Bl & Z IR T3 DAL R 51 & 0
in the following currencies: HREE
Group Company
L A4 H
2013 2012 2013 2012

RS DR -TE SRS SR
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T#T T T#T

Hong Kong dollars Wt 29,976 74,177 70 192
Renminbi N 50,852 31,454 - -
United States dollars R 9,933 19,393 78 79
Other currencies o Ath £ ¢ 45 35 - -
90,806 125,059 148 271
£ 2
24, PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, WA 3k 0H K REEHIE H
Group Company
A 4R A2 ]

2013 2012 2013 2012

R =g R T8 ZF-Z28 R4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#x T T

Trade payables (note b) B 5 WA IR K
(kD) 133 159 - -
Property acquisition cost payable JRE A iy S W i AR 1,604 1,119 - -
Accrued bonus & 5t AE AL - 950 - -
Accrued expenses in respect of WA I S 4
acquisitions of hotel properties Z e E 30,450 29,000 - -
Other payables and accruals Al 8 A5 sk T e
JE B H 17,850 33,136 1,815 1,741
Deposits received for disposal of Wi H B OB 2 )
equity interest in subsidiaries JBe W 2 ¥ 57,310 - - -

107,347 64,364 1,815 1,741

LRl PR ] 109
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24.PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 24.

(a) The carrying amounts of the payables and accruals are

denominated in the following currencies:

W A5F 5 JH B JiE wt JE H
(%)

(a) HEAS I K MBSt E H MR AR TS
VLT B £ R A

Group Company
AL AR T

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR -DE R T RS F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#L T T#T
Hong Kong dollars #t 2,425 16,625 1,815 1,741
Renminbi N 104,922 47,739 - -
107,347 64,364 1,815 1,741

25.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

(b) As at 31 March 2013, trade payables of HK$77,000 and
HK$56,000 (FY2012: HK$57,000 and HK$102,000) were
aged within one month and between one and three months

respectively.

CONVERSION OF PREFERRED SHARES
BY A SUBSIDIARY INTO COMMON
SHARES

On 28 October 2009, “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited
(“UIHHL”) has entered into subscription agreement where UIHHK
agreed to issue and the subscriber, an independent third party, agreed
to subscribe for 2,590 Series A preferred shares (“Preferred Shares”) at
a total subscription price of HK$145.0 million based on a subscription
price of HK$55,984.55 per preferred share. The proceeds of the
subscription were settled partially by setting off against the loans
advanced to the Group by the subscriber before the subscription of
HK$70.0 million, and the remaining HK$75.0 million was settled
in cash. Subscription was completed on 1 November 2009. Details
of the issuance of Preferred Shares can be referred to the Company’s

announcements dated 27 October 2009 and 29 October 2009.

(b) MB—=Z#=A=Z+—H-¥5
JRE A B 35 77,0009 JG £ 56,0009 JG
(= — A B B4R < 57,0009
JC K 102,000% 70 ) Z MRk 43 B 2 —
HARNE—Z=MAN-

25. Fit I8 2 R 3 A7 2 8 o ik

O s 3 0

RZERAAETAZHNE B ERE
WG Ve PR\ (TR &R R )
1L — TE R R - R O o AR Y B
BERFAZET BB (BILE=T)
] 25 w8 2,590 B AR B 48 S B (T8 2
JBEL) o AR5 A e IR B 5B B 55,984.55
W 0 Fh A S8R 1E %5 145,000,000%
N HE AT R % T A T AR 2 Bk
70,000,000 % 7C 7 47 > 1M % #75,000,000
WD BEEMN - R EHON %
FhAET—H—HER - BITERRZ
HEAT2EARAFRR -FEZNLETH
T EHEZZFZETAHZTILET
BT ANEo
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25. CONVERSION OF PREFERRED SHARES

BY A SUBSIDIARY INTO COMMON
SHARES (Continued)

The Preferred Shares are convertible into 2,590 common shares
(“Common Shares”), representing 25.9% of the issued Common
Shares of UIHHL upon conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders
of the Preferred Shares are entitled to a preferred return of 6% per
annum prior to the conversion of the Preferred Shares. Holders of
the Preferred Shares shall convert the Preferred Shares into Common
Shares at the ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common Share at the

latest three years from the date of issue of the Preferred Shares.

The Preferred Shares are compound financial instrument which is
separated into two components: a liability component and an equity
component. The liability component was recognised as the discounted
value of the preferred return payable during the three years period from
the issuance of Preferred Shares until the last date of conversion into
Common Shares. Interest expense was calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 10% to the
liability component. The equity component was residual value of
the proceeds from the issuance of Preferred Shares less the liability

component.

The liability component is presented as “Liability component of
y p p y p

compound financial instrument” in the consolidated statement of

financial position. The equity component is presented as “Non-

Controlling interest” in the statement of changes in equity.

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M BRI ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

25. Fit I 2 W B AT < 18 o ik

P W E i (%)

B 2 B v i A% A 2,590 B A I (57
JBE 1) > R 7 B Sl P A IR AR 1) 5 A
PO AT B Z225.9% o BB R
AN RE TS B 56 i 7 i 4 B = A AR
6% 2 B S [ o B SE EFEAON S5c 2B ZE
BB AT R ZAEN - R R
e e A Ty — I 35 8 e 2 Ll AR > S B S e
0 7 % T -

18 S Je s R B B T L - 43 Ry W )
FUE R o B R 3550 4y o BRI 2 R B S
JBe B AT 2 WA W T B e AR H = A
Y01 ) B A 2 S T s 2 B £ e R o
B3 R T B B R RO A R
B B 10051 5 o BE i 3 20 2 8 e I 3%
AT P A5 3k Tk £ A 4 Z R AL

FARHER Y SR AR A B R DR N Z 1]
B TR Z AR o B R 4 51
fEmEss BB RN Z [FEEE MRS | -

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i

111



farch 2013 # E _—F—=#F=H=——H I}

25. Wi 2% 7 98 47 2 185 6 M
e 2 Y ()

- 25. CONVERSION OF PREFERRED SHARES
BY A SUBSIDIARY INTO COMMON
SHARES (Continued)

On 1 November 2012, UIHHL converted all the Preferred Shares into BBt —H—H R E R
Jhe % — e B e Bt 6 A — I i 2 L
1 > s FO A S B A R BT A S i e
e 2 5 8 Bt o oh R TR AT A MO 0
7 55 [ 1R A R 4 i 2 T B P 100%
WEZ74.1% o REZR ¥R o3 BLIE P R 25 2
MABEHZEZH CHBREARFE

Bt 03wl B N AR HE 43 W o

Common Shares at a ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common
Share to the Preferred Sharcholder of UIHHL on 1 November 2012.
As a result of the full conversion, the Group’s shareholding in UITHHL
was decreased from 100% to 74.1%. The difference between the equity
component and the amounting which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted, was recognised directly in capital reserve and attributable to

the owners of the parent.

Group

A 4R M

HK$000

T¥#T

Proceeds of issue BAT RS 3K IH 145,000

Liability component HBEER (21,630)

Equity component at 31 March 2012 R CHEEZAZT BRI 123,364

Transfer to reserves upon conversion W IR R 2 A (33,470)
Loss for the year attributable to I e B HE 22 WA 4 N i 4R

non-controlling interest (1,728)

Translation exchange reserve SRR 209

Non-controlling interest at 31 March 2013

MR -ZHE=EH=2 2R R 88,375

Liability component at 1 April 2010 RO -RENA —HZ A 22,525
Interest expenses for the year ended BRER-—HEA=Z1THIEFEEZ

31 March 2011 A8 S 1,894
Liability component at 31 March 2011 BRoR-—EEA=E T HZAMERS 24,419
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Interest expenses for the year ended

BRER-H=ZA=Z1THILHFEEZ

31 March 2012 A B 2 1,216
Liability component at 31 March 2012 Ro-F—-THE=ZHA=Z+—HZAGET S 25,635
Interest expenses for the year ended BRECR-=H=ZA=Z+—HILFEZ

31 March 2013 )8 X H 465
Repayment [y (26,100)

Liability component at 31 March 2013

WoR-EZFEA=ZTHZ ARG



25. CONVERSION OF PREFERRED SHARES
BY A SUBSIDIARY INTO COMMON

SHARES (Continued)

 the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continue

B B R ML (A1)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

25. Fit & 2> w] 3847 2 18 o it

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s liability component of compound

financial instrument were repayable as follows:

P W E i (%)

ROB-ZHEZA=ZT—H REEKE

aE TR AL AR T

Group
A4
2013 2012
R =4 TR
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tt T
Within 1 year — current portion — AR — BT - 25,635
Between 1 and 5 years — non-current portion — ZHARE N — LB ER 4 - -
- 25,635
26.BORROWINGS 26. fi 5k
Group Company
A 4R A ]
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR S R R -SE E T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THot Tt Tt
Other loans oAty £k - 35,470 - -
Obligations under finance leases Tl A B R - 586 - -
Amount due to ultimate JREASF 5 #e 4 e n W)
holding company FHIE 448,383 405,640 448,383 405,640
448,383 441,696 448,383 405,640
LR A A BR A W

2012/2013 4E i
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26.BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. fii sk (#1)
At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s N R CEEAE T

borrowings were repayable as follows: H o> A< 48 [ e AR 24w 22 fif sk 78 1 0
T
Group
ALM
Obligations under

finance leases Borrowings

il 5 L B 4fE i

2013 2012 2013 2012

TR R R R

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt FHL Tt F# L

Within 1 year — current portion —4E Py — BB 4 - 586 448,383 441,110
Company
A2
Borrowings
1 3%
2013 2012
TR -CE RO
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Within 1 year — current portion — 4y — B 4 448,383 405,640
As at 31 March 2013, the Company has fully fulfilled its obligations RER-=24=ZA=Z1—H - AAFA B
under finance leases during the year. R JEATHAE R R LR T 2 R o
Pursuant to the written agreement with the lender entered into RS 4 3 A% B ER ON BT S = 5
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the repayment of the i o A e 2 15 B A W) 4 3K 44.8,400,000
loans due to the ultimate holding company of HK$448.4 million has WrHZEFNoERE-FE—WFEILA
been extended to 30 September 2014. =+H-

i ivepen ooy . 0. . SSSEESSSETT
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onsolidated Financial Statements (Continue

Aok 1 W 25 R M e (7

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ —&F — =4 = H =1 —H IL4F ¥
26. BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. ik (#)
Group
3
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#x T
Finance lease liabilities il AR £
— minimum lease payments: — B AR AH B A K
Within 1 year —EN - 601
Between 1 and 5 years —AEFERAEN - -
- 601
Future finance charges on finance leases il AR B 2 AR B - (15)
- 586
The effective annual interest rates at the end of the reporting period e R 2 BB AR A R
were as follows:
2013 2012
gk g
HK$ RMB US$ HK$ RMB US$
0 AR EIT iy AR E
Other loans Jof B - 10.0% - - 15.0% -
Obligations under finance leases AR 5.2% - - 5.2% - -
Amount due to ultimate holding company HEF B 2 P I IR 10.0% - 10.0% 10.0% - 10.0%

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair value.

ik < W i SR 2 P M A

LR A A BR A W
2012/2013 4E i
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26. BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. fisx (#1)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the i sk 2 W L 5 DA R B £ W R

following currencies:

Group Company
ALK M A2 il
2013 2012 2013 2012

CRSHE DE-TE SRS DR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#T T T#T

Hong Kong dollars T 370,651 335,877 370,651 335,291
United States dollars B 77,732 70,349 77,732 70,349
Renminbi N - 35,470 - -
448,383 441,696 448,383 405,640
27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 27 WEAE PR 45 B B A K £ 1R
LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a HA s VT AT RE R T B B E
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current L B3 5t O A ERH KB > i B 4 B A
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities G e B B — R SRR R BN
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the JRE R B 8 2 [v] — OB B R T OB =
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to BBA M - BA BRIk T 45 AR
settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows: IRF > B 5 08 2T i 44 B0 S B £ ELAH
HEEH - HREH AW T -
Group
A
2013 2012
R =4 TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T oo
Deferred income tax assets T G i 19 B0 B 2 74
Deferred income tax liabilities I 4E FT 45 Bl AL A (19,805) (8,531)
(19,803) (8,457)

16 vepen ooy . 0 . SRS
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27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 27. 3B % Fir f B B O % BT
LIABILIITES (Continued) (#1)
The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AN SR BB IR DL R BT AR 2 B
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements PR B i, (B Bt e L5 Byt
during the year are as follows: T
Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses  properties Total
3 wEWE
FEEE  BHEBEER ATPHEED A

) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
T#T T#T T#T T#T

At 1 April 2012 /AR S 3
WHA—H (74) 74 (8,457) (8,457)
Credit/(Charged) to the sEA (HBE) A
consolidated statement of AEEmIREE
comprehensive income 72 (72) (5,165) (5,165)
Charged to other comprehensive A A 2 v WA 1 BR
income - - (6,050) (6,050)
Exchange difference A S - - (131) (131)
At 31 March 2013 /A S S
=Z=A=Z+—H (2) 2 (19,803) (19,803)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: AR Z BTG BEENT
2013 2012
R =R R
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T T o0
Unutilized tax losses REHZ BIEEHE 69,255 64,585
Accelerated depreciation allowances in BT 8 4 369 382
69,624 64,967
LR A A BR A W

2012/2013 4E i
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27. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILIITES (Continued)

At 31 March 2013, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and
the Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$348.3
million and HK$20.6 million (31 March 2012: HK$325.6 million
and HK$42.8 million) respectively, which can be carried forward
against future taxable income, have not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax
losses, HK$209.4 million (31 March 2012: HK$201.9 million) has
no expiry date and HK$138.9 million (31 March 2012: HK$123.7
million) expire within five years under the current tax legislation of the
respective jurisdictions. The Company’s unutilized tax losses have no

expiry date under the current tax legislation.

27. ?(&éi)ﬁﬁéﬁé%%&ﬁﬁ%

M_F—Z4E=ZH=Z1—H - KEH
AR 23 V) e VT A DL IR B B A% E R ML
A Z AR B BLIE i 4 43 71 £1348,300,000
W JC 520,600,000 JC ( = F — 24
=Z=H=1—H:325,600,000% JC &
42,800,000% JC ) - H K H 1% i F 2% J5
AN Y BRI > W AR T R R A A I
98 4% w3 B [ 2 BAAT RS R 1] > AE AR
45 [ 758 35 & 48 P > 209,400,000% 76 ( —
F—-H=H=+—H:201,900,000

K

Woo) JIF % JE 5 H 8- 138,900,000

WL (ZF—-Z#HE£=H=+—H:
123,700,000% 76 ) A T 48 9 21 1 o 41
PEBAT BB - A AT 2 AR B ALIE

Jhes 454 3 A i T E 3 o
28.SHARE CAPITAL 28. A
2013 2012
—E =& R —-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T¥#T
Authorized: WidE
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000/8 ¥ /& J§% -
HK$0.01 each IR i E0.013% 7T 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: AT KB
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares of 1,529,600,200/8 % 71 it -
HK$0.01 each B Ji I {E0.019 T 15,296 15,296

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 42,000,000 share options were
granted under the Scheme with an exercise price of HK$0.77 per share.
The related weighted average closing price immediately before the date

on which the share options were granted was HK$0.77 per share.

The share options to subscribe for shares are exercisable as to:

(i)  For Directors or employees who have been employed for not less

than two years immediately before date of grant:

(a) up to 20% immediately after date of grant;

(b) up to 46.7% immediately after 12 months from date of
grang;

(¢) up to 73.3% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and

(d) up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

(ii) For Directors or employees who have been employed for less than
two years immediately before date of grant:
(a) up to 33.3% immediately after 12 months from date of
grant;
(b) up to 66.7% immediately after 24 months from date of
grant; and
(c) up to 100% immediately after 36 months from date of

grant.

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2008 estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model is
HK$0.2658 to HK$0.2941 per share, which was based on valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer, Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited. The calculation takes into account a share price of
HKS$0.77 per share, exercise price of HK$0.77 per share, a risk-free
interest rate of 4.02% to 4.15%, a volatility of 42.34% to 50.62%
with expected life for 2.5 to 4.0 years and no expected dividend.

None of the share options granted under the Scheme was exercised

during the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

o the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M BRI ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

29. il it B wt 21

WRECRZNE=ZA=1—HILEE
A > 42,000,000 1 B HE IR 4% Wt ) 2 42
> A7 45 8 2 19 80,779 0 o 5% I B
REEF2 300 T 2 A R o - 349 Wi i
o 0. 779G

S FBE R WY T B0 R A4 DA A A

() MEEZHHBWCZERSD R

WAEZERRER NS :

() ZBERHIRE S E20% 3

(b) EPERH H BT 20 H %
% #46.7% *

(c) ZEPERH H MR F24M A &
WZHET3.3% 5 K&

(d) ZEBERH H B30 A %
BEZE100% °

(i) R H W2 08 A 5 A

Z#HH R B -

() ZERERM HBRE2MEA %R
5% #33.3% >

(b) EEBEFZ I H W E 2408 A 7%
W2 HEC6T% 5 K

(o ZBEFH H W36 H %
B ZHE100% o

REZFZ)NE=ZH=1+—HILEE
¥ 2 W R 2 A S ML 9 b or B
S Ak E B b R AN A B A W) AT Z A
> TR ) 58 — &7 A Al (A B M1 T
i 5t o A 5 BR0.2658 %8 7T £0.29413
JC o Bb Rt BB A B B 0. 773 o - AT
B 80,774 00 ~ SR BR A 24,0200 %
4.15% ~ W M42.34% % 50.62% K& T8 7l 4F
W2 524,04 > WIEFHFI R -

BE-Z =R _F—-_H#=H
=t H IR4E B > W AT AR 4R R 9%
H 2 S I i o

R T, .
2012/2013 4E i
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

29. Jilf Jie HE Gt 3 (45)

N AR AT 2 B R S 1 e LA B I B - 3

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: TR Z BT
2013 2012
R =4 R T
Average Average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
in HK$ of share in HK$ of share
per share options per share options
HERE S P
AT A7
() WREESE (WX) EREEA
At 1 April BH—H 0.77 9,200,000 0.77 12,200,000
Forfeited ne2l'e 0.77  (9,200,000) 0.77  (3,000,000)
At 31 March W=A=1+—H 0.77 - 0.77 9,200,000

The outstanding option exercisable as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 was

nil and 9,200,000 respectively. The outstanding share options as at 31
March 2012 were lapsed and forfeited on 22 August 2012.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
Annual Report 2012/2013

HRZR 2R DR -CFEZEN
= H AT R AT A B RE 43 R A
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30. RESERVES

onsolidated Financial Statements (Continue

Aok 1 W 25 R M e (7

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ — % — =4 = =+—H ILFF &

-

2012/2013 4E i

30. fifl fhi
(a) The Group (a) AEEH
Available- Employee
for-sale  share-based
Share Capital financial ~ compensation Exchange  Revaluation  Accumulated
premium reserve  assets reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
WO ERE AR G fZ
Jht i 1 BAH BB R A 16 5 ok A G i it ek
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T T
At 1 April 2011 e A Y | 152,049 - 521 3431 35,924 - (234,182) (42,057)
Translation exchange difference AN % - - - - 14,404 - - 14,404
Transfer to accumulated losses TR IR e B i 5
upon lapse of share options AR - - - (844) - - 844 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (52,418) (52,418)
Available-for-sale financial assets e O
- release of reserve upon disposal H S A B B f - - (844) - - - - (844)
Impairment loss reclassified from F it M
available-for-sale financial (1 Lt Vs P4
assets reserve WG - - 323 - - - - 323
Deferred tax on revaluation increase % S {51 Bt 2 B ALIH - - - - - (8,116) - (8,116)
Property revaluation WEER - - - - - 20,141 - 20,141
At31 March 2012 WoF-ZHEZAZ—H 152,049 - - 2,587 50,328 12,025 (285,756) (68,767)
Translation exchange difference S A - - - - 600 - - 600
Conversion of preferred shares — TR0 2 0 e P
by a subsidiary - 51,671 - - (13,282) (4,919) - 33,470
Transfer to accumulated losses B R R 0
upon lapse of share options 2itER - - - (2,587) - - 2,587 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (70,799) (70,799)
Deferred tax on revaluation increase T i 5] S Z I BT - - - - - (6,050) - (6,050)
Property revaluation WEER - - - - - 13,018 - 13,018
At 31 March 2013 REZ-ZHEZ=A0 152,049 51,671 - - 37,646 14074 (353,968) (98,528)
B4 A B ]
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

30. fifi i (%)
(b) The Company (b) A2
Employee Available-
share-based for-sale
Share  compensation financial ~ Accumulated
premium reserve  assets reserve losses Total
VA3 34 ]
2B & %
Bt 3 ¥ 8 i 1 6 &R 2l M
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R Tt AR ARV T
At 1 April 2011 QI S S
WH—H 152,049 3,431 - (166,815) (11,335)
Transfer to 7 W B E 2 2% I
accumulated losses % 2 2 AT
upon lapse of share
options . (844) - 844 -
Loss for the year ERIER - - - (42,828) (42,828)
At 31 March 2012 PWoFE T
ZH=+—H 152,049 2,587 - (208,799) (54,163)
Transfer to 7 I PR HE 2 2% I
accumulated losses Wz 25 EE
upon lapse of share
options — (2,587) - 2,587 —
Loss for the year EREHE - - - (48,091) (48,091)
At 31 March 2013 REF—Z4
=H=+—H 152,049 - - (254,303) (102,254)

122 ivepenoeors . . R, SSEERSTET
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) the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued

Aok 1 S 25 R MRk (76

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

31. COMMITMENTS 31 & s
(a) Lease commitments (a) FLEE AR
(i) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the (i) AR E R — S 2
lessor HHA
At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group had contracted MR- EZER TR
with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables: ZH=E4—H - REE A
WA DA B AR A B A K
2013 2012
ZE = R T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
it Fil
Not later than 1 year A —4F 4,922 3,980
Later than 1 year and not later —AE DL B AH S A
than 5 years 19,687 18,326
Over five years 8 AR 17,462 22,021
42,071 44,327
Operating lease receivables represent future aggregate A8 LB A AR R A 4 )
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable T 3 2 A W) i a R
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases 8 L WO 2 FiL 4 R AR R AR
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of ten to R o — B - ALY & Ty
eleven years. [ R T ol i o i< R 1)
AL 4B i S Y o
(ii)  Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the (ii) AEE R AR — 5L 75
lessee RN
At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group had commitments MR -ZER DR
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented ZA=Z+—H s REEMRBER
premises, which fall due as follows: EEiC i b2
I e 2 LB 4 2 R
T
2013 2012
ZE = R
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T# 7t T#x
Not later than 1 year A — A 1,429 1,137
Later than 1 year and not later —AR DL B AH R 8 1 4R
than 5 years 890 -
2,319 1,137

T T e 12
2012/2013 4E i
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(b) Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has commitment in relation
to acquisition of hotel properties from China Post Group and
the outstanding commitment amounted to RMBO0.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.8 million) (31 March 2012:
HK$7.6 million).

Other than those mentioned above, the Group has commitments
in respect of refurbishment costs for HK$6.0 million as at 31

March 2013 (31 March 2012: HK$4.9 million).

32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during

the year.

(a) Interest expense

During the year, the Group has interest expense payable to
VXLCPL, the ultimate holding company, amounting HK$42.8
million for the loan as disclosed in Note 26 (FY2012: HK$40.2

million).

The loan from the ultimate holding company is interest bearing
at fixed rate, unsecured and repayable in September 2013.
However, based on the mutual agreement on 17 May 2013, the

term of the repayment was extended to September 2014.

romat vepor 20120 . . NN, SRS
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31. 7495 (%)
(b) EA K

RE-R—=ZF=ZA=1+—H K4
G A 7 1 v 1B R B 4 )
5 3 2 R o % R AT AR T N R
#600,0007C (8 4577 49800,000%5
n) (ZR-FE=ZH=1—H:
7,600,000¥ 75 ) o

B Lakghhs R R —-=H=H
Z—H > AL B R Z
Y £56,000,0008 0T (ZF— 4
=Z=H=+—H :4,900,000¥J0) °

32. B T R 5
4 i 5B O HEAT 2 5 S RPN o

(a) BB

AR Y o AR 4R [ B RE26 BT R 2
K A T d5 4 I A W] VXILCPL
Z P 8 BH 3 #542,800,000% o8 (=
F— AR B BUAR B £ 40,200,0009

JG) °

B R AR B o ] 2 R I S R R it
B iR R = AE R
HARR - SR> R =410
HAtHZME > BT R
ER-WERA -




32.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Key management compensation

to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

f A A IR AR W R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2013 # £ - F—=4#F= =+—H IL4FE

32. B Wk 5 22 o (#)

(b) EZE G &

2013 2012
R =4 TR T
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#I0
Directors’ fee o - -
Salaries and other short-term 3 4 B A Y I B AR A
employee benefits 2,318 1,936
Pension costs — MPF IR AR 4 AR — o i) A B 4 15 12
2,333 1,948
33.SUBSEQUENT EVENT 33. Hi o IR B 0H

On 17 May 2013, the management has obtained agreements from
VXLCPL, who agreed to extend the repayment of the borrowings due
to the ultimate holding company totaling HK$448.4 million to 30

September 2014.

On 31 May 2013, “U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited (R %
B E A R AW ) (“UTHIL”), a subsidiary of the Company, entered
into two Equity Transfer Agreements with two independent third
parties to sell 100% equity interest of “U” Inns & Hotels (Xiang Fan)
Management Co., Limited (R %48 (FE45% ) i % 45 BLA IR A w )
(“Xiangfan”) and “U” Inns & Hotels (Bu Er Jin) Management Co.,
Limited (4% /% B8 15 45 81 (A SR ) AR A F]) (“Bu Er Jin”)
for the consideration of RMB24.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$31.4 million) and RMB9.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.7 million) respectively. In addition to the consideration, the
two independent parties will also repay the entire inter-company debts
owed by Xiangfan and Bu Er Jin in the amount of approximately
RMBI12.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$15.2 million)
and RMBO0.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.1 million)
respectively. The estimated gain before expenses and taxes from the
disposals of Xiangfan and Bu Er Jin are approximately of RMB14.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.9 million) and RMBO0.8

million (equivalent to approximately HK$1.0 million) respectively.

R —=4AAATLH - EHECE
VXLCPL ] 7 6 JE A d5e 4% 428 B 24 W] 3K I
5 3£448,400,000 %5 76 Z A s 3k H B 1L
BEZR—NEILH=ZTH-

MREF—ZFEAA=+—H KA
W B 2> AR 0 AR A R A R (TR
P % R | ) BT 44 0 0% 58 = 07 T oL WA
JBE AR R R R o M R M KR (FEAE)
WHE A MRA A ([FEH]) KIBH
R B (R ) A A A
(T A T e ] ) 2 0 I B > AR 43 il 2 A
R24,900,0007C (HH ¥ 2 £131,400,000
wo6) K& A\ R ¥9,300,00000 (FH & i £
11,700,000% 70 ) © BRAR A » 3% Wi 44 8
AR =7 71 AR SO R A K A T
BRZ AV AR SEFSHH A
[12,100,0007C (FH % 2 %715,200,000
#ot) & A R 900,0007C (F# R4
1,100,000% 72 ) © 11 % B 3% J% B8 JE i »
B B % A W A T AR 4 Rl
#k NR¥14,200,00070 (H % 4
17,900,000% 72 ) K A R #800,0007C
(FH% i £91,000,0004 0 ) ©

R T, .
2012/2013 4E )t
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34. SCHEDUE OF INVESTMENT 34. B EWE £

PROPERTIES
Attributable
Interest to
Location Use Tenure the Group
A5 M
for B ik L3 JRE A1 B 25
Zhouyue Building Commercial Medium 74.1%
West Kunlun Avenue
Bayuquan District
Yingkou City
Liaoning Province
PRC
ELE R [LES T 74.1%
H B 2 A
file £ P B i K Y
Wuhan China Post Building Commercial Medium 74.1%
202 Jinjiadun
Wuhan City
Hubei Province
PRC
o T R R A M S [LES GN 74.1%
o 0 b 2 oK T
T I 7 7 4 A 420258
35.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 35. ik 4k &5 W0 R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 126 were HERERFOR T ZFANHANH AR
approved by the board of directors on 6 June 2013. REEISH B 1260 X 5 A M B kK -
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[ BSR4 K&

“Articles of Association”

[ CALAR AR AR |

“Associate(s)”

R PN

“Board”
[ F ]

“CG Code”
[ (R |

“Company” or “VXL Capital”
[ A 20 W) | gl [ el 4l |

“Companies Ordinance”

[ (AR PBESD ]

“Directors”

[ 5%

“Group”
(A4 M |

“HK$”
[#7c |

“HKICPA”
[ 8 7 5t il 2

“Hong Kong”
[ 75 ]

Annual General Meetings of the Company

A0y ] PR AR R

The Articles of Association of the Company

A ] AR A R AR )

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the

financial statements

HA CEM B Bk ¥ 2 2% > M8 Hk W 5 A 18 & B b

The board of Directors
KAFZHEREG

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

Chrs gAY B sk H iz (R4 JlD

VXL Capital Limited
L 4 A PR 2

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time

to time

BFWHEHIE =125 (ARG (RARERT)

Directors of the Company

AN #HEHR

The Company and its subsidiaries

Ao ] B J I e 4

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
Wt B EERN

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Wl A

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Hh B 7 9 A ) AT

il
2012/2013 4E )t
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Glossary (Continued)

) ot (#)

“Listing Rules”
[ CEdBaD |
“Model Code”
[ syl |

“RQN Committee”
[RQNZ H 7 |

“PRC”
[

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
NG

“SFO”
[ G R & pepl) |

“Shares”

[ JBed

“Scheme”

[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ 3R

“Stock Exchange”
[ T8k &2 it |

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
=3

“VXLCPL”

[VXLCPL J

arporsoizoors TN
Annual Report 2012/2013

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from

time to time

Wi B G LB (REARRERT )

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
ChE LAY B g+ iz (b8 47 A\ 47 /8 20 22 5 i A e <y 1))

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee

B RELRVZRE

The Peoples’ Republic of China
H 2 A B3 A

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N B - h 28 B

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended

from time to time

HWHEHIE LA L8 GEF R BRG] (EARERT)

Ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AR 2 JBE AR F A I L0019 T = ¥ 0

The share option scheme adopted by the Company at AGM held on 3 June 2005
AATRZRBIAEANAZH BT ZRRBE RGBSR Z i B R )

Holder(s) of Share(s)
[ EEEREDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EHWH G5 A RA

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
HE GER M EBED) MR T Z W%

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands and a controlling Shareholder of the Company

A B2 B 4 B 5 R S 44 %5 VXL Capital Partners Corporation LimitedZ 23 & » 25 4%
O ) Z 1 BBOR
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nmary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

last five financial periods.

1/4/2008 to

Financial Summary
bk 25 47 2

A S5 T i dp A0 A B B0 D 2 A S A B

HiEe

1/4/2009 to

1/4/2010 to 1/4/2011 to 1/4/2012 to

31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013
1/4/2008 % 1/4/12009% 1/4/2010% 14120118 1/4/2012%

31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000

T F oo F oo TH#o T

Turnover B¥EH (10,105) 2,329 4,401 6,436 6,627
Loss before taxation i 8 Tl i 4R (180,163) (154,278) (66,414) (52,073) (67,355)
Taxation credit/(charge) BOIEHE % (Z ) 29,087 (3) (3) (345) (5,172)
Loss for the year 4 4 JiE 41 (151,076) (154,281) (66,417) (52,418) (72,527)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

at 31 March 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013.

ALER_FFLE - ZF-FEFE - ZF

—— - ZF-ZHR_F=H=H
=t HZEERA BB T -

31/3/2009 31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000

T T8 T30 T T

Total assets A 521,741 589,758 631,503 610,045 581,425
Total liabilities A (346,961) (444,285) (535,100) (540,152) (576,282)
Total equity 1 25 48 £ 174,780 145,473 96,403 69,893 5,143

B4 A FRA 7
2012/2013 4E )t
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Shareholders’ Information

JBe AR

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2013 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 4 September 2013 at 2:30
p.m. at Executive Boardroom in Business Centre, Level 7, Island Shangri-
la, Hong Kong, Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong.
Details of the 2013 AGM are set out in the Notice of 2013 AGM sent to the

Shareholders together with a proxy form along with this Annual Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:

Name: Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Address: 31/E, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
Telephone: ~ +852 2153 1688

Facsimile: +852 3020 5058

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information
of the Company are available online at the Company’s website,

heep://www.vxlcapital.com.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2013

Announcement of 2012-13 final results 6 June 2013

2013 AGM 4 September 2013

Announcement of 2013-14 interim results November 2013

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

HKS$270.7 million as at year end, based on closing price of HK$0.177 per
Share on 28 March 2013.

Jbe S AE R |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.
Mr. David YU Hon To
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. David YU Hon To (Chairman)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.. (Chairman)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

Mr. David YU Hon To

Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LIM Yi Ping

Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)

AEER (5)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 603A, 6th Floor
Empire Centre

No. 68 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F.,, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
33/E, Cheung Kong Centre,
2 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)

WEBSITES

VXL Capital Limited

htep://www.vxlcapital.com

U-Inn Hotels

http://www.uinns.cn
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